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Quality HealthCare Asia Limited is a physician led provider group offering an in
including facilities management, third party plan administration and para
care for our private and corporate contract patients through a network of
medical centres, and 47 dental and physiotherapy centres. In 2009, our net:
healthcare visits. We operate seven elderly care homes and Hong Kong's long
agency. One of our medical practices has been serving Hong Kong people“fc

Quality HealthCare became the first healthcare provider listed on The Stock Ex
ticker 593) in 1998. The Group’s healthcare turnover in 2009 exceeded HK$
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

| am pleased to present the Company’s annual report for 2009 to our
shareholders. The Group has achieved solid growth in both revenue and
net profit for the reporting period. The Company’s positive performance
reflects the efforts of the management team and the entire staff in the
execution of our business plans and our growth strategies.

We take the view that Quality HealthCare is well positioned to support
the Hong Kong Government in its healthcare reform initiatives directed
towards striking a better balance between private and public healthcare
provision and establishing a sustainable healthcare financing model.
According to the Government’s Budget for 2010-11, it is estimated
that recurrent expenditure on health will reach around HK$37 billion in
2010-11, accounting for 16.1% of recurrent government expenditure.
The Government has pledged to further increase health expenditure
to 17% of recurrent government expenditure by 2012 and will seek
to make efficient use of the additional funding to improve services
and move healthcare reform forward. According to the Government’s
Budget 2010-11, the Working Group on Primary Care, chaired by the
Secretary for Food and Health has put forward a number of proposals
to strengthen primary care services, including the extension of the pilot
project to enhance support to chronic patients, setting up community
health centres or networks, and enhancing primary dental services and
oral health promotion programmes, particularly those for the elderly. The
Government is also considering revising the value of health care vouchers
and adjusting the age limit under the Elderly Health Care Voucher Pilot
Scheme. Quality HealthCare will continue to participate and support the
Government in these initiatives.

The Group has continued to expand its medical network in the
community, providing an integrated range of primary and secondary
healthcare services. We are also seeking to develop more extensive
wellness services to assist our clients in the early detection, prevention and
active management of chronic diseases. We support the Government’s
new pilot subsidy scheme to be launched in June 2010 enabling patients
with diabetes and high blood pressure in the Shatin and Tai Po areas to
seek medical care in the private sector. We understand that the scheme
will be extended to other clusters in the next stage of development.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Group has continued to devote resources towards enhancing our
capacity to provide efficient and patient-focused care through active
staff and client engagement, systems enhancement and process re-
engineering. Significant investment in the restructuring and upgrading
of IT infrastructure will be made in 2010, in line with Hong Kong
Government’s intention to have e-health records territory-wide and to
increase our operational efficiency. We have also continued to diversify
our offerings to provide lifestyle and aesthetics services to the Hong
Kong community, and visitors from China, with the same high level
of quality and professionalism. The Group will develop two medical
spas and specialist diagnostic facility in the coming year. At the same
time, the Group continues to seek opportunities for establishing our
footprint in China. As healthcare reforms are being rolled out in China,
we look forward to assessing potential opportunities in healthcare
related businesses, such as medical equipment distribution, healthcare
management and consultancy, as well as healthcare service provision.

The Board has in the past indicated that it has been actively exploring
opportunities for the deployment of cash surplus to its operational
requirements and has also taken the view that if no suitable opportunities
were identified it would utilise various methods to return an appropriate
portion of these funds to shareholders.

The Board has reviewed the Company’'s present position and has
decided that the Company has funds excess to its current requirements.
Accordingly, the Board has decided to return HK$99 million (net of
expenses) of these surplus funds to shareholders via the following two-
step process in lieu of proposing a final dividend for 2009.

Firstly, the Company will undertake a share buy back at HK$4.10 per
share to utilise the HK$99 million. This will enable any shareholders
who wish to dispose shares an opportunity to do so at a price which
the Board considers appropriate and reasonable for the Company and
all its shareholders.

Secondly, the Board has stated its intention to declare a special dividend
to remaining shareholders of any balance of the HK$99 million not utilised
for the share buy back. The Company currently expects that it should
also be able in the ensuing year to maintain its general dividend policy
of paying approximately 40% of its after tax profits as dividends.

A separate announcement containing details of the share buy back has
been issued by the Company on 24 March 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

2009 has been a challenging and rewarding year for the Group, and
we will continue to focus the Group on further growth in the coming
year. | would like to express the Group’s appreciation to all our staff for
their dedication and effort in 2009 in delivering professional and caring
service to our clients. | would also like to thank my fellow Directors, our
network of doctors, our professional advisors and finally our shareholders
for their continuous support during the year.

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

(i) The Group delivered a net profit of HK$75.9 million in 2009,
a 17.7% growth compared to HK$64.5 million in 2008. The
profit growth was inclusive of fair value gains on financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss of HK$4.4 million.
Basic earnings per share for 2009 were HK33.4 cents compared to
HK27.2 cents in 2008.

(i) Revenue for the Group in 2009 increased by 12.5%, including full
year contribution of GHC Medical group, to HK$1,100.8 million
from HK$978.3 million (as restated) in 2008.

(iii)  Profit before income tax was HK$89.0 million in 2009 compared
to HK$75.2 million in 2008. Quality HealthCare Medical Services
delivered divisional profit of HK$72.6 million in 2009, up 14.5%
on 2008; Quality HealthCare Services delivered divisional profit of
HK$10.2 million, up 6.3% on the previous 12 months. Divisional
profit for Quality HealthCare Elderly Services was HK$7.7 million,
an increase of 18.1% compared with 2008.

Finance costs of the Group amounted to HK$1,000 for the year.

Net cash inflow from operating activities for the year was HK$96.3 million
(2008: HK$101.6 million). Cash and bank balances at 31 December 2009
were HK$226.9 million (2008: HK$230.0 million).

Net assets at 31 December 2009 was HK$339.9 million compared to
HK$304.2 million at 31 December 2008.

DIVISIONAL REPORT

Quality HealthCare Medical Services (QHMS)

Income from external customers in 2009 increased by 15.4% to HK$905.3
million, compared to HK$784.5 million (as restated) in 2008, while
divisional profit in 2009 was HK$72.6 million, an increase of 14.5%
compared to HK$63.4 million in 2008. Major contributors to this result
are summarised below.

Network Growth

As a result of the acquisition of GHC Medical group in late 2008 and
the opening of new core medical centres, QHMS expanded from 42 to
58 core medical centres in 2009. This expanded General Practice service
base for QHMS was well received by our clients, accounting for over 40%
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of the revenue growth in 2009. In addition, QHMS continued to explore
new channels for expanding our network, and in 2009 we opened our
first medical centre within the Mannings store in Jordan.

Specialist Care

Expanding our specialist services continued to be a key initiative. In
2009, we commenced our first community specialist centre in Shatin,
and we also devoted resources towards enhancing the facilities of our
minor operating theatres at the different medical centres. There was
an 18% increase in the number of in-patient cases in 2009, and this
together with the specialist care delivered at our out-patient settings, has
accounted for over 30% of the revenue growth for the reporting period.
We will continue to expand our specialist services and will establish a
diagnostic facility in 2010.

Lifestyle and Aesthetic Services

Cosmetic skin services grew steadily in 2009, addressing the lifestyle
needs of our clients. Together with our standalone cosmetic skin centre
CASE, our lifestyle and aesthetic services contributed 16% of revenue
growth for 2009. We will make efforts to expand the market share
and presence of CASE in the coming year as a complementary service
to the medical services offered through our physicians. Revenue from
our Chinese Medicine services increased by 8% in 2009 compared with
2008, and the total number of visits also showed a slight increase of
2%. A new standalone Chinese Medicine centre opened in late 2009 in
the Kowloon East area, providing a full range of consultation, treatment
and product sales.

Third Party Administration
Our third party administration services continued to expand, contributing
8% of the revenue growth for 2009. We will develop these services
further as opportunities arise.
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Engaging Our
Customers

HEEF

Strategic Focus
QHMS has continued to focus on three areas to maintain growth.

Enhancing Operational Efficiency

With the steady growth in the scale and complexity of our business,
the management team has devoted resources towards revamping our IT
platform with the object of enhancing operational efficiencies at both the
frontline and head office. This will help us to maintain our competitive
edge and protect our business margin through lower costs. We plan to
continue invest in IT development in the next two to three years.

Achieving Service Excellence

Key performance indicators have been developed for the medical centres
and our different departments to allow regular reviews and audits. We
also expanded our Customer Service Department in 2009 to enhance our
capacity to support our customers, doctors and business counterparts.
We are pleased to report that in our 2009 annual customer satisfaction
survey, 88% of the respondents rated us “above average” and “very
satisfied” in the overall rating of our medical centres and service. We
continue to have a strong retention rate among our corporate and

insurance clients with no loss of any major accounts in 2009.

Engaging Our Customers

We have continued to develop our knowledge management platform
so that different teams can work closely to share their knowledge
and formulate new ideas to engage our customers. A new self service
knowledge base has been introduced to our new corporate website
whereby our customers can search for information in an efficient manner.
We have also been working closely with our corporate and insurance
partners to identify key areas in our current business processes that can
be streamlined and automated to further reduce costs in health delivery
and management.
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Growth Opportunities

QHMS will continue with the expansion of its network and its specialist
care services, as well as its lifestyle and aesthetics services. With the
ageing population, increased prevalence of chronic disease, and higher
demand for quality of life, we will devote resources to develop new
centres focusing on promotion of wellness, including screening and
specialised programs to prevent and manage health risks.

We believe that our medical and wellness network will serve the needs of
the private sector, and is also well positioned to support the Government
in serving clients currently in the public sector, as well as visitors from
China. In addition, our management team will continue to explore growth
platforms in China for Quality HealthCare.

Quality HealthCare Services ("QHS")

Income from external customers of QHS recorded a slight decrease of
0.4% to HK$97.2 million in 2009, compared to HK$97.6 million in 2008.
However, divisional profit increased by 6.3% to HK$10.2 million in 2009
compared to HK$9.6 million in 2008.

Key Initiatives

Our Nursing Agency was awarded 1SO 9001:2008 Quality Management
System accreditation in 2009. Despite the severe shortage of nurses in
the market, Nursing Agency was successful in growing its staff relief
business for public and private hospitals, and will continue exploring
new service niches. We are pleased to note that in the Government'’s
Budget 2010-11, one of the key initiatives to be funded by the Hospital
Authority is the strengthening of the training of nurses to meet service
growth and development needs. It is expected that 1,400 nurses will
graduate in 2010, an increase of 40% over 2009, and the number will
rise to 2,150 in 2012.

During the reporting period, Dental services continued to expand its
network with the addition of a new clinic in the New Territories. The
division also developed its new line of facial aesthetic service products as
an adjunct to its core cosmetic dental services, and the implant dentistry
service was expanded to the General Practitioner level for easier access by
clients. In 2009, there was an 8.6% growth in the enrolment of corporate
dental services. Dental will continue to expand its network and upgrade
its facilities with a new flagship centre in Central in 2010.

10 Quality HealthCare Asia Limited Annual Report 2009
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Physiotherapy services saw a 3% increase in total attendance in 2009
compared to the previous year and will continue to explore further
network expansion opportunities. At the same time, more corporations
approached our physiotherapists for customised advice on workstations
and further resources will be devoted to expand services in this area.

Following the relocation of our ophthalmic centre to Mongkok in
December 2008, we have also added ophthalmic services to one of
our medical centres in Central in 2009. Our Cataract centre recorded
steady growth in cataract surgeries in 2009. With the long waiting list
for cataract surgeries in the public sector, we are well positioned to
support the Government'’s initiatives to shorten the waiting list through
the cataract surgeries outsourcing program.

Psychological services recorded a 55% growth in the number of corporate
clients subscribing for its Employee Assistance Program and over 70%
growth in number of attendances for individual counseling services.
We have developed with our strategic partner an online wellness portal
with content and language capabilities that suit the Asia Pacific region:
this new service was launched in late 2009. Psychological services will
continue to expand its services in conjunction with the overall, delivery
of wellness services.

Quality HealthCare Elderly Services (“QHES")

QHES achieved a growth of 2.2% in income from external customers to
HK$98.3 million in 2009. The divisional profit increased by 18.1% from
HK$6.5 million in 2008 to HK$7.7 million in 2009, reflecting increases
in home occupancy and service fees.

With the recovery in the economy and an active employment market,
QHES faces the dual challenges of staff shortages and cost escalation.
The high demand for nurses in the market caused significant difficulties
in recruitment even at escalated salaries. In addition, rental and other
operating costs also increased. However, we managed to reduce margin
pressure by an increase in monthly service fees.

According to the latest projection from the Hong Kong Government, the
number of people aged 65 or above will double sharply in the next 20
years. At present, on average, one in every eight persons in Hong Kong
is 65 or over. By 2036 it is expected to be one in every four persons. The
demand for elderly care and health services are expected to continue
to grow substantially.
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In view of this situation, the Government announced in the 2010-
11 Budget that it will strengthen residential care services for elderly
people who cannot be taken care of at home, especially frail elderly
people requiring nursing care. In January 2010, the Elderly Commission
released its consultancy study report on Residential Care Services for
the Elderly. It pointed out that, with a rapidly ageing population, a
longer life expectancy and a low tax regime, increasing the supply of
subsidised residential care places alone will not be sufficient to meet
the ever-growing demand for long-term care services of the elderly. The
study recommends that the Government should develop community care
services to help the elderly age in place.

The Government has agreed with the general direction of “ageing
in place” advocated in the study report, which is in line with the
Government'’s policy of “supporting ageing in the community as the core,
institutional care as back-up”. The Government will launch an elderly
home care pilot scheme to provide more personalised home care services
for the elderly who are waiting for nursing home places.

QHES believes that with its experience and its professional staff, which
includes registered/enrolled nurses, physiotherapists, social workers and
occupational therapists, the Company is well-positioned to support the
above initiatives.

PEOPLE

The Group is proud to congratulate the 37 awardees for 10-year, 15-year,
20-year and 25-year Long Service Awards, and the 18 Service Ambassador
awardees. Six of our medical centres, one dental and one physiotherapy
centre were recognised as Centres of Excellence, while five medical
centres received Centre Service Improvement Awards. We congratulate
all our awardees for their excellent achievements. We are also proud to
report that Dr. Lincoln Chee, Chief Executive Officer of Quality HealthCare
Asia Limited, was a winner of the Outstanding Entrepreneurship Award
presented by Asia Pacific Entrepreneurship Awards 2009 Hong Kong.

Active staff engagement to assist our staff to grow and excel in their
profession and career path, continues to be our key priority. We have
initiated a series of occupational health and safety audits to enhance the
well being of our staff, and we organised our first Corporate Wellness
Day in December 2009 at our head office.
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COMMUNITY OBLIGATIONS

In 2009, our staff has participated actively in the Group’s community
projects, including Walk Up Jardine House organised by Mindset Limited,
and Heart-to-Heart Charity Walk organised by the Children’s Heart
Foundation. Donations were made to the Hong Kong Cancer Fund;
Ronald McDonald House Charities Hong Kong Limited; Hong Kong Red
Cross; and Bring Me a Book Hong Kong Limited. Total contributions,
were over HK$98,000.

OUTLOOK

Whilst there has been a relatively fast recovery of the Hong Kong
economy, challenges remain as corporations are conservative in their
budget and manpower planning. Rising costs in the health care sector
remain a significant issue. Quality HealthCare will continue to focus on
understanding the needs of our customers, and delivering quality services
that are caring, affordable, ethical, and responsive to the changing
environment. We will continue to invest and develop opportunities as
they are identified. Our management team continues to focus on our core
competencies in providing an integrated range of health and wellness
services for the Hong Kong community, while actively and responsibly
exploring expansion opportunities in China.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2009, the equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$339.9 million, representing an increase
of HK$35.7 million from that of 31 December 2008. During the year,
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by HK$483,000
as a result of the repurchase and cancellation of 4,836,452 ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.1 each, for an aggregate consideration
of HK$14,550,000 (including expenses).

The Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to HK$226.9 million
(31 December 2008: HK$230.0 million). It is the Group’s objective to
ensure there are adequate funds to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

In 2009, the Group purchased bonds in a number of reputable listed
companies in Hong Kong to enhance the interest yield on temporarily
surplus funds. The bonds are classified as “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” in the financial statements. The value of the
Group's bond investments amounted to HK$52.4 million as at 31
December 2009 and the Group recorded a fair value gain to the profit

or loss of HK$4.4 million since their acquisition.
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The Group made no bank and other borrowings at 31 December 2009. As
at 31 December 2008, the only outstanding borrowing was an obligation
under a hire purchase contract of approximately HK$3,000.

Since the Group had no bank and other borrowings, the gearing ratio
comparing net debt (borrowings net of cash and bank balances available)
to equity was not applicable at 31 December 2009.

CURRENCY AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s main operating subsidiaries are located in Hong Kong and
over 90% of the Group’s revenue and purchases during the period were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

All bank facilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Interest is
chargeable on a floating rate basis with reference to Hong Kong Best
Lending Rate or HIBOR.

Most cash and bank balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had certain foreign currency
assets denominated in US dollars. As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to the US dollar, the Group considers the foreign exchange risk to be
insignificant, and accordingly, it does not have any requirement to use
financial instruments for hedging purposes.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2009, the Group had no assets under pledge.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details regarding the contingent liabilities of the Group at 31 December
2009 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associates by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

At 31 December 2009, the total number of employees was approximately
1,140. Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$429.7 million
(2008: HK$374.9 million). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages, together with discretionary bonuses to its staff, based on
industry practices, individual and Group performances. The Group also
offers training courses and continuous education sessions as part of the
Group’s emphasis on staff training and development.

Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Arthur George Dew
(Chairman and Non-Executive Director)
Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin
(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
Mark Wong Tai Chun
(Executive Director)
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai

(Deputy Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director)

Li Chak Hung

(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Carlisle Caldow Procter

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin (Chairman)
Mark Wong Tai Chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Li Chak Hung (Chairman)
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
Carlisle Caldow Procter

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Li Chak Hung (Chairman)
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
Carlisle Caldow Procter

COMPANY SECRETARY

Hester Wong Lam Chun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mark Wong Tai Chun
Hester Wong Lam Chun

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton
Certified Public Accountants
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LEGAL ADVISORS

Mallesons Stephen Jaques
P. C. Woo & Co.
Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Tengis Limited

26/F., Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS

6/F., China Merchants Steam Navigation Building
303-307 Des Voeux Road Central
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

TICKER SYMBOL

Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

under the share ticker number 593
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Arthur George Dew

Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dew (68) was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 17 December 2002 and became an Executive Director and the Deputy
Chairman of the Company on 13 February 2003. He was appointed
the Chairman of the Company on 18 March 2003 and re-designated
as a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2007. Mr. Dew
graduated from the Law School of the University of Sydney, Australia,
and was admitted as a solicitor and later as a barrister of the Supreme
Court of New South Wales, Australia. He is currently a non-practising
barrister. He has a broad range of corporate and business experience and
has served as a director, and in some instances chairman of the board of
directors, of a number of public companies listed in Australia, Hong Kong
and elsewhere. Mr. Dew is a non-executive director and the chairman of
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") and Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL"),
both of which are substantial shareholders of the Company. He is also a
non-executive director of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK HK
Ind”) (formerly known as Yu Ming Investments Limited). AGL, APL and
SHK HK Ind are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin MBBS, FRCS, FAMS, FAAO-HNS

Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Chee (45) was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
on 6 June 2003 and took up the post of Managing Director of Quality
HealthCare Medical Services. He was subsequently appointed the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 July 2007. He graduated
with a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery Degree (MBBS)
from National University of Singapore and was a Ear, Nose and Throat
Consultant Surgeon at Singapore General Hospital, the largest tertiary
hospital in Singapore. Dr. Chee is a Fellow of the Royal College of
Surgeons Edinburgh, Fellow of the Academy of Medicine Singapore and
Fellow of the American Academy of Otorhinolargyngology and Head and
Neck Surgery. Dr. Chee was a clinical lecturer in National University of
Singapore and completed a government sponsored clinical fellowship
in Rhinology at the University of lowa Hospitals and Clinics, USA. He
has published in prestigious peer reviewed journals and conducted
international courses in Endoscopic Sinus Surgery. Dr. Chee has also
attended executive education courses for healthcare at Harvard Business
School and finance at Michigan Ross School of Business. Dr. Chee was
selected as the Outstanding Entrepreneur of Hong Kong in the Asia Pacific
Entrepreneurship Awards in 2009. Dr. Chee resigned as a non-executive
director of Arana Therapeutics Limited, a biotechnology company listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange, in 2009.
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Mark Wong Tai Chun

Executive Director

Mr. Wong (45) was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
on 5 April 2000. He joined the Group in 1997 and is also the Finance
Director of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the
financial controller of other listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
has a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and is a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He is the director of investment of AGL, the substantial shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Wong is also an executive director of SHK HK Ind.
AGL and SHK HK Ind are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai

Deputy Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chang (55) was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company on 28 October 2004 and became the Deputy Chairman
of the Company on 24 November 2006. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Commerce from Concordia University in Montreal, Canada since 1976
and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from York University
in Toronto, Canada since 1977. He has over 32 years of experience in
banking, corporate finance, investment and management and has held
various executive positions at financial institutions and directorships of
listed companies. Mr. Chang is currently the Managing Director of Ceres
Consultancy Limited and is a registered person under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Tian An China Investments Company Limited, Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited and APAC Resources Limited. Mr. Chang was previously the
chairman and an executive director of Trasy Gold Ex Limited, an executive
director of China Financial Leasing Group Limited and the managing
director of Ceres Capital Limited.

Li Chak Hung

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Li (45) was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 12 October 2004. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business
Administration and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He has over
20 years' experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
Mr. Liis also an independent non-executive director of ChinaVision Media
Group Limited (formerly known as Shanghai Allied Cement Limited), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Carlisle Caldow Procter

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Procter (69) was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 30 September 2004. He graduated from the University
of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in
Economics. He is a Fellow of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia
(FFin.). Based in Australia, Mr. Procter worked in the Reserve Bank of
Australia for over 30 years, holding various senior management positions.
Since leaving the Bank, he has worked as a consultant to the International
Monetary Fund (IMF) and the Asian Development Bank (ADB) and has
also undertaken private consulting work in the Philippines, Indonesia
and Papua New Guinea in the areas of bank supervision, anti-money
laundering and corporate governance respectively. Mr. Procter is currently
a non-executive director of Bank South Pacific Limited, a company listed
on the Port Moresby Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK"), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. David Abdullah

Director, Clinical and Staff Development of Quality HealthCare Dental
Services

Dr. Abdullah (50) graduated from the University of Manchester in 1984.
He obtained the Diploma of Membership of the Faculty of General Dental
Practitioners of the Royal College of Surgeons of England in 1994 and
the Diploma in Postgraduate Dental Studies from Bristol University in
1999.

Dr. Chan Kin Ling

Medical Director of Quality HealthCare Medical Services

Chairman of Medical Standards and Compliance Committee

Dr. Chan (56) graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1978 with
Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery Degrees (MBBS). He was
admitted as a Fellow of Royal Australian College of General Practitioners
(FRACGP) and Fellow of Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (FHKCFP)
in 1993. Dr. Chan attained the Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine
from Monash University in 1995 and registered as a Specialist in Family
Medicine. Dr. Chan obtained his Master’s Degree in Family Medicine
from Monash University in 1999 and successfully completed the Diploma
in Occupational Medicine from Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2000. Dr. Chan was elected as a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine (Family Medicine) i.e. FHKAM (Family Medicine) in 1995. He
joined Dr. Henry Lee and Associates in 1983 and he has practiced for
over 30 years.
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Julie Chow Chi Lei

Executive Director of Quality HealthCare Physiotherapy

Director of Quality HealthCare Services

Director of Corporate Communications of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited
Ms. Chow (45) graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 1987 with Professional Diploma in Physiotherapy and in 2005 she
attained a MBA - International Hospital Management from Nations
HealthCareer School of Management and HfB — Business School of
Finance and Management in Frankfurt, Germany. Her extensive clinical
and administrative experience covers hospitals and clinics in private and
community settings both in Hong Kong and Canada, including a period
with the Hong Kong Government's Medical & Health Department. Ms.
Chow joined Drs. Anderson & Partners physiotherapy clinic in 1994
and has led its transformation and expansion into Quality HealthCare
Physiotherapy.

Ms. Chow’s duties also extend to overseeing the division of Quality
HealthCare Services as well as the Group’s Corporate Communications
affairs and marketing initiatives.

Jessica Keung Wing Yan

Legal Manager of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited

Ms. Keung (36) graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor Degree in Law and she was admitted as a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong SAR in December 2000. Ms. Keung joined the
Group in September 2005. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Keung had
served as (assistant) in-house legal counsel in other listed companies in
Hong Kong. She had also worked in the Credit Risk Control Department
of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited.

Leo Lam Hon Yiu

General Manager (Operations) of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited
Executive Director of Quality HealthCare Elderly Services

Mr. Lam (44) has joined the Group since 1994. He is currently the
General Manager (Operations) of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited and an
executive director of Quality HealthCare Elderly Division. Mr. Lam holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Law from Tsinghua University and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration. Mr. Lam is also a Fellow of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Dr. Bobbie Lau

Executive Director of Quality HealthCare Dental Services

Dr. Lau (47) graduated from Guy’s Dental Hospital, University of London
in 1985 and obtained his licentiateship in dental surgery at the Royal
College of Surgeon, England in 1986. He practiced in the U.K. and
returned to Hong Kong and joined Quality HealthCare Dental Services
Limited in 1998 as one of the founding clinician. He was appointed
Executive Director of Quality HealthCare Dental in June 2008.

Dr. Horace Lee Yan Wang

Medical Director of Quality HealthCare Medical Services

Dr. Lee (46) joined the company in 2004 and currently practice at Cathay
City and Crawford House Medical Centre. He is the head of the Medical
Affairs Team and a member of Medical Standards and Compliance
Committee. Dr. Lee works closely with various departments in Sheung
Wan and he is responsible for the planning and organisation of the
Continuous Medical Education programme for the Group.

Dr. Lee graduated from the University of Adelaide in 1989. Since then,
he obtained the Diploma of Occupational Medicine, Diploma of Family
Medicine and Diploma of Diabetic Management and Education at
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee was admitted to the
membership of Royal College of General Practitioner (UK) in 2002
and he also completed the Masters of Family Medicine at the Monash
University (2003); the Masters of Science in Endocrinology, Diabetes
and Metabolism at the Chinese University of Hong Kong (2006); and
the Master in Aviation Medicine at the University of Otago in New
Zealand (2008). Dr. Lee has also graduated from the Master of Business
Administration (Executive programme) at the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in December 2009.

Dickson Lo Chun Fai

Finance Director of Quality HealthCare Medical Services

Mr. Lo (42) obtained his Bachelor Degree in Economics (major in
Accounting and Finance) from Monash University, Australia. He is a
Fellow member of CPA Australia and a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

Mr. Lo spent seven years with PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong
in providing consulting services to a wide range of corporate clients
investing in the PRC. Subsequent to this, Mr. Lo held various senior
management positions, including finance, corporate and strategic
business development roles, in a restaurant group which operated KFC
and Pizza Hut franchise restaurants in various countries in Asia as well
as in the US. In addition to financial management at corporate level,
Mr. Lo also worked in a private equity firm with experience in merger

and acquisition and portfolio management.
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Tam Kit Ling

Senior Finance Manager of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited

Senior Finance Manager of Quality HealthCare Elderly Services

Ms. Tam (44) has joined the Group since 2000. She has over 20 years of
experience in Finance and Accounting. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Tam
had been the Accounting/Finance Manager of other listed companies.
Ms. Tam holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from University of London.
She is @ member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Hester Wong Lam Chun

Company Secretary of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited

Ms. Wong (50) has been the Company Secretary of the Company since
June 2003. She is also the Company Secretary of SHK. Ms. Wong is a
fellow of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She has over 25
years' experience in the company secretarial field.

Matthew Wong Tak Chiu

Internal Audit & Compliance Manager of Quality HealthCare Asia
Limited

Mr. Wong (32) graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Internal Auditor. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Wong had been working in an international
accounting firm for over 8 years.

Dr. Dominic Yan Wai Man

Medical Director of Quality HealthCare Medical Services

Dr. Yan (58) graduated from the University of Queensland in 1977 with
Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery Degrees (MBBS). He
obtained the Diploma of Occupational Medicine from Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2001. Dr. Yan has practiced in Australia and Hong Kong
as a General Practitioner for over 31 years. He co-founded the Allied
Medical Practices Guild in 1982.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholder value.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the light of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which came into effect on 1 January
2005, the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company. The Company has applied the principles of, and complied
with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2009, except for certain deviations as specified. The
reasons for such deviations are explained below. The Board will review
the current practices at least annually, and make appropriate changes
if considered necessary.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises six Directors in total, with two Executive

Directors, one Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-

Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of the Board during the

year and up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors: Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mark Wong Tai Chun

Non-Executive Director: Arthur George Dew (Chairman)

INEDs: Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
(Deputy Chairman)

Li Chak Hung

Carlisle Caldow Procter

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Board
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 18 to 20.

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority of whom
are independent) provided the Group with a wide range of expertise
and experience. Their active participation in the Board and committee
meetings brought independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process, taking into account the
interests of all shareholders.
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Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company had
three INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board. Two of the
three INEDs have the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation
of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent
under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group in addition to the
meetings for reviewing and approving the Group’s annual and interim
results and other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with. During
the year, six Board meetings were held and attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings is set out as follows:
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EEREICT i g AvA

ExeTHOMes  IWAREZBRRE 2
BRUBRE UERHREERNEE 2 2F LT H
XENNMEMBTREEEESH -EFENFARSE
TTRRE®  BREEZHERWT

Number of Board meetings
attended/held

T
Name of Directors EEnA S /N
Arthur George Dew KA 6/6
Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin R 6/6
Mark Wong Tai Chun BN 6/6
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai (520 4/6
Li Chak Hung S i 6/6
Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter 6/6

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating budget, annual
and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment, material contracts and transactions as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
daily operations and administration to the executive management under
the instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which has its
specific written terms of reference. The respective functions of the Board
and management of the Company have been formalised and set out in
writing. The Board reviews these procedures from time to time to ensure
that they are consistent with the existing rules and regulations.
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Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity
to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings, and ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so
far as practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft Minutes of each
Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
being tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All Minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to current Board practice, any transaction which involves a
conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director and which is
considered by the Board to be material, will be dealt with by the Board at
a duly convened Board meeting. Bye-laws of the Company also stipulate
that a Director should abstain from voting and not be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Director
or any of his associates have a material interest therein.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In addition, a
written procedure was established in June 2005 to enable the Directors,
in the discharge of their duties, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the
Company.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") are
separate to reinforce their respective independence and accountability.
The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Arthur George Dew who is primarily
responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring that all significant
policy issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive
manner, that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings, and that the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information. The CEO of the Company is Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin who
is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management, administration,
development and growth of the Group’s business. Their responsibilities
are clearly segregated and have been set out in writing and approved
by the Board in June 2007.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and criteria
for the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of
the Company. The Chairman of the Board shall, based on those criteria
as set out in the Nomination Procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment etc.), identify and recommend the
proposed candidate to the Board for approval. The Nomination Procedure
was revised in August 2007 to provide for the case of filling a vacancy of
the Chairman of the Board where the recommendation of the proposed
candidate shall then be made by the Executive Committee.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key applicable legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well
as guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documented corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Senior management will subsequently
conduct such briefings as are necessary to give the new Directors more
detailed information on the Group’s businesses and activities.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the Company
was appointed for a specific term of one year, subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible
for re-election. Such term for each of the Non-Executive Directors has
been renewed for a further one year from 1 January 2010.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Any
Director appointed as an addition to the Board should hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting and would then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. Further, any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should hold office only until the next following
general meeting and would then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, being the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Executive Committee, each of
which has its specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes
of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by
the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the
committees are required to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures and arrangements
for a Board meeting, as mentioned above, have been adopted for
committee meetings so far as practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since September
1997 and currently consists of the three INEDs, including Messrs. Li
Chak Hung (Chairman of the Committee), Francis J. Chang Chu Fai and
Carlisle Caldow Procter. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if considered
necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i)  to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration policy
and packages of the Directors and, where appropriate, to consult
the Chairman and/or CEO about the committee’s proposals relating
to the remuneration of other Executive Directors;

(i) to review and recommend performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives approved by the Board
from time to time;

(iii) to review and recommend the compensation payable to Executive
Directors relating to any loss or termination of their office or

appointment;

(iv) to review and recommend compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(v)  to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
are in line with the code provision B.1.3 of the CG Code, but with a
deviation from the code provision of the remuneration committee’s
responsibilities to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management of a listed company. The
Board considers that the Remuneration Committee of the Company
should review (as opposed to determine) and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors only
and not senior management for the following reasons:

(i)  the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly
in a position to evaluate the performance of senior executives and
that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the
Executive Directors;

(i) all the Remuneration Committee members are INEDs who come
from different professions and backgrounds, and are not involved
in the daily operation of the Company. They may have little
direct knowledge of industry practice and standard compensation
packages. The Remuneration Committee is thus not in a position to
properly determine the remuneration of the Executive Directors;

(iii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to determine
their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus shareholders will benefit by
reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Company’s website.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2009 and the attendance of each

member is set out as follows:

Committee member ZEERE

%ﬁ%\é%ﬁia\éQ%ﬁ*ﬁ@% cRZFEEN
FOBRIT-AZEBEEH MEKBMHFERLT

Number of committee meeting
attended/held

Hjﬁ/ BT

EEEERIRE

Li Chak Hung (Chairman) TEW (F/F)

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai gl

Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter

In addition to the committee meeting, the Remuneration Committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2009. In 2009, the
Remuneration Committee performed the work summarised as below:

(i) reviewed the policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors;

(i) reviewed the performance of the Executive Directors and
recommended the remuneration packages of and bonuses for the
Executive Directors to the Board for approval; and

(iii) reviewed the proposed services fees of the INEDs and the renewal
of terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors for one
year commencing from 1 January 2010 and recommended the
same to the Board for approval.

The remuneration payable to Directors depends on their respective
contractual terms under their service contracts as approved by the
Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. Details
of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since September 1997
and currently consists of the three INEDs. To retain independence and
objectivity, the Audit Committee has been chaired by an INED (with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise) since October 2004. The current members
of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the
Committee), Francis J. Chang Chu Fai and Carlisle Caldow Procter. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according to
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

30 Quality HealthCare Asia Limited Annual Report 2009

171

171

71

BRETZESgHN
LMif'EJXﬁFH‘EJ}%fE%EL n= gghi'%ﬁ%%
BeCEZIIEMlmT -

() WETEFZHMMER NGRS

(ii) \T%ﬂ”?%%Zi’%ﬁ&ﬁi%AkﬁL
HOERMITEE 2 HMEBRIELD &

(iii) @RI L IEHT é%zk ARG E MAER] IEH
TEEZAR B-_FT-FTF—A-BEHAR

H—% ﬂ?ﬁﬁtl‘nﬂ%%@hﬁjﬁﬁﬁ CAHEE
gHE -
EEVHFMRIFHEEenEFTgREZER

BER  YREBZRBANAZIGERMETE - %
EH N2 F BRI SRR 3

ERZEES

EREZEEE - NNAEFNARKY - BRIE=%
B IEMITERMER - AREFBUMLERME - &
REEGE_ZTHWF AR B—RHES
HEEK - m#@z*ﬁfﬂ'ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁz%iﬁﬁﬂ
TEFEAXF BREEGZRENERTER
SE(ZEGER) - B A& NCarlisle Caldow
Procterfotf - EZ L E @ ELE TRWERNELT
B WARADRZHRERRTE 1%*5%&%
¥ER -



The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i) to consider and recommend to the Board the appointment, re-
appointment, or removal of the external auditors; to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors,
and any questions of resignation or dismissal of those auditors;

(i) to consider and discuss with the external auditors the nature and
scope of each year’s audit;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and

objectivity;

(iv) to review the interim and annual financial statements before

submission to the Board;

(v)  to discuss any problems and reservation arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any matters the external auditors may
wish to discuss;

to review the external auditors’

(vi)

management letters and
management’s response;

(vii) to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk

management systems;

=

(viii) to review the internal audit plan, ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the Group; and

(ix) to consider any matters arising from internal audit's investigations
and management’s responses.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Company are
revised from time to time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision of the audit
committee’s responsibility to implement the policy on the engagement of
the external auditors to supply non-audit services. The Board considers
that the Audit Committee of the Company should recommend (as
opposed to implement) the policy for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper, and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(ii)  the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Directors and
management; and
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(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and

follow up the same on a day-to-day basis.

The revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on

the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least three times a year. Three

committee meetings were held in 2009 and the attendance of each

member is set out as follows:

(i) BIUFMTEFU TEERITHE ZHERR
HETAE -

BERZEEREAZBERECSEHNARAHE

Number of committee meetings
attended/held

&ﬁ/@”
Committee member ZEERE ZESEBRZE
Li Chak Hung (Chairman) PR (F/F) 3/3
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 5= 2/3
Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter 3/3

In addition to the committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt
with matters by way of circulation during 2009. In 2009, the Audit
Committee performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the

external auditors regarding the final audit of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2008, and the 2009 interim review for
the six months ended 30 June 2009;

(i) reviewed the reports from the external auditors and management

letters in relation to the final audit of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2008 and the interim results review for the six months

ended 30 June 2009;

(iii) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31 December 2008

and for the six months ended 30 June 2009 and recommended the

same to the Board for approval;

(iv) reviewed and approved the 2009 audit plan of the Group;

(v)  reviewed the internal control and compliance activities submitted

by the Head of Internal Audit and Compliance on the operations

and performance of the Group;
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(vi) reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget;

(vii) reviewed the report from an external professional firm in relation to
an update on internal control review and assessing the enterprise
risk and key control of the Group; and

(viii) considered and recommended the proposed appointment of new
external auditors of the Group.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since September 2003
and currently consists of the two Executive Directors, being Dr. Lincoln
Chee Wang Jin (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Mark Wong Tai
Chun. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers
of management and control of the activities of the Group as are vested
in the Board of the Company, save for those matters which are reserved
for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of
reference of the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking and
supervising the day-to-day management within the overall framework
as determined by the Board, and is empowered:

(i)  todevelop and implement policies for the business activities, internal
control and administration of the Group; and

(i)  to develop and implement strategies for the business activities of
the Group.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries
being made by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for Securities
Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in the securities
of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its securities.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from Finance Department, the financial statements of the
Group. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009, the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance have been complied with. Appropriate
accounting policies have also been applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors, Grant
Thornton, are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages
48 to 49.

Internal Control

The Group's internal control system are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems.

In 2009, the Board, through the Audit Committee and the Internal
Audit and Compliance Department, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group. It has also reviewed
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training

programmes and budget.

In early 2009, the Board has also reviewed the follow-up report on
internal control review and enterprise risk assessment issued by an
external professional firm. This additional measure was adopted to assist
in further strengthening the internal control system and to improve
overall corporate governance culture.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit and Compliance Department carries out a systematic
approach to improve the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group. The Internal Audit and Compliance Department presents its
report and findings and the annual audit plan at the Audit Committee
meetings for approval. The Head of Internal Audit and Compliance reports
to the Chairman and the Audit Committee. Copies of the minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are also sent to the Board for information.
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External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young (resigned on 18 September 2009) and Grant
Thornton (appointed on 28 October 2009), is set out as follows:

SN R B BT RO B

RER - B2 BATFARBINEZEEIZKE
A EBMERZTETAFENA+TN\HET) Y
BeMT(R_ETAF AT NBZE)ZH
BRI

Fee paid/payable

Bt EA

HK$’000

Services rendered for the Group A 7 5 iR 1R Y AR A FHER

Audit services, payable to Grant Thornton ZHARY - B EE AT 540

Non-audit services (including taxation FERBRTS (BERBERER  FHPHEER 399

compliance, review of interim results FERFEWME)  RLKGFHREBABEEN R MAS N

and reports on factual findings), paid to
Ernst & Young prior to their resignation

Total: A&t 939

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate information
as well as the recent development of the Group are also made available
on the Company’s website.

The Company’s Annual General Meeting (the “AGM") is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman actively participates in the AGM and personally chairs the
meeting to answer any questions from the shareholders. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee or in his absence,
other members of the respective committees, are also available to
answer questions at the AGM. The Chairman of any independent board
committee formed as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if
no such Chairman is appointed, at least a member of the independent
board committee) will also be available to answer questions at any
general meeting of the shareholders to approve a connected transaction
or any other transaction that is subject to independent shareholders’
approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.
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The notice to shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in the case of all other general meetings. An explanation
of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the
shareholders at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman
answers questions from shareholders regarding voting by way of a
poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed under the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue
to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the
basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote and improve
our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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Report of the Directors
EERHS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

An analysis of the business segments of the Group during the year is
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 50 to 140.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2009.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified/restated as appropriate, is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

EEEMAREARARAEEHEEZ _TThF T+
ZA=ZTRALFEIREREEZVBRER

EE-E
ARTZEBEBHRALR - SEEMBATZ

TEXGHABENMBHEERME 7 - FR - AKE

AEBRFERNZEB DB THIIN M HRR M=
5o

FERKRE

AEEHZE_ZTNFT _A=T—-HILEFEZR
Ao ARARRE RAEERZ B Z P BOGROR &R
FES0EV408 Z HBEHERA -

FALERETHRES - EETEIREBE_ZT
NEFZA=+—HILFERNRAKS -

MBERBE

TXFHAREED A2 RERMBEHRRLLE
ZEFDE/EM2IN2AEERBER BN ERSF
BZREREBERBEZIME - AHBY THEKERE
ZE R 2 — 8D -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEFE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EThE —EENF —ET+F —EERF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=E5) (E5) (&E5) (&%)
RESULTS E4
REVENUE A 1,100,812 978,264 865,393 819,917 757,700
Profit before income tax & TS Bl i 7 88,987 75,210 71,593 78,300 66,440
Income tax expense FrigfiF =2 (13,062) (10,690) (8,360) (13,151) (10,300)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  ZRAT]
ATTRIBUTABLE TO wAa AEGE
THE OWNERS F N A
OF THE COMPANY 75,925 64,520 63,233 65,149 56,140
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(continued)

MBERMEE)

31 December

+=A=+—8H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—ETAF —EER)NF TETLF TEERF ZETRF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHT
ASSETS AND EEREE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BWEE 541,464 492,394 439,619 365,772 262,335
Total liabilities waE 201,577 188,244 132,207 127,080 112,048
Total equity B 339,887 304,150 307,412 238,692 150,287
Total liabilities and FEN=RE 95
total equity R 541,464 492,394 439,619 365,772 262,335
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M-~ BERRZE
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group ~ AEEY % - BERZERFA 2 EBHFBEEHIIRN
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements. TS IRERMIFE14
CHARITABLE DONATIONS ZEBX

The total donations made by the Group for charitable purposes during
the year amounted to approximately HK$98,000.

SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year,
together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

There were no outstanding share options throughout the year. A summary
of the Company’s share incentive plan is set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company repurchased
a total of 4,836,452 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$ 14,550,000
(including expenses). All the repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled. Particulars of and reasons for making the repurchase are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during
the year ended 31 December 2009.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, amounted to HK$410,393,000. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$69,042,000, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2009, the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers, respectively accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue and purchases for the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mark Wong Tai Chun

Non-Executive Director:
Arthur George Dew (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai (Deputy Chairman)
Li Chak Hung

Carlisle Caldow Procter

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1) and (2), Mr. Mark
Wong Tai Chun and Mr. Li Chak Hung will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no Director
had a material interest in, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests or short positions of the Directors

and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

“SFO")), as recorded in the register (the “Register of Directors’ Interests”)

required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or

as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

were as follows:

Interests in
the Company/

EERRORERRD 2EEZR AR

RZBENF+-A=+—0 REZHFRIAEK
PI(TE S BERD ) E3526 R F TRz ELM
(TEE=#aECM])  HREEWETAESRET
EHERXZHNRESTRI([RETRA ) MABANARE]
REBBMARZMARABR(BRM])  AARE
EREBTHRABRAR R SHEEMABEEE(E&H
RBEFHEERMNEXVED 2By - HERh R ESE
BZRESEIRRWT

Approximate
percentage of the

associated Nature of Number of relevant issued
Name of Directors corporations interest shares held share capital Notes
RELAT, EEEE BITRE
EEnR TR A E 2 s EEME FEROEE BMYBES Bt =
Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang lJin Allied Group Limited Personal 80,000 0.03% 1
TRAE(C e ("AGL") EA
BEEBEERAR
Q= S )
Allied Properties (H.K.) Personal 800,000 0.01% 2
Limited (“APL") B A
e iE(FE)BRAR
(TB&IE |)
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Personal 250,000 0.01% 3
Limited (“SHK") 1A
HREBFRAR([FBE])
SHK Hong Kong Industries ~ Personal 5,614,000 0.15% 4
Limited (“SHK HK Ind”)  fELA
MIKREBRAR
(I ITHED
Mark Wong Tai Chun Company Personal 119,203 0.05% 5
BN RAT] fEA
Li Chak Hung SHK HK Ind Personal 6,000 0.0002 % 6
ESE i MIRE {EPN
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Report of the Directors

EREWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. This represents an interest in 80,000 shares of AGL, a holding
company of the Company.

2. This represents an interest in 800,000 shares of APL, a holding
company of the Company.

3. This represents an interest in 250,000 shares of SHK, a fellow
subsidiary of the Company.

4. This represents an interest in 5,614,000 shares of SHK HK Ind, a
fellow subsidiary of the Company.

5.  This represents an interest in 119,203 shares of the Company.

6.  This represents an interest in 6,000 shares of SHK HK Ind, a fellow
subsidiary of the Company.

7. All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2009, no short positions were recorded in the Register
of Directors’ Interests.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, neither the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Interests or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year and as at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors
of the Company had any personal interests in the options to subscribe
for shares in the Company’s holding company, AGL, granted under the
share option scheme of the said company.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

42 Quality HealthCare Asia Limited Annual Report 2009

EENROREBEROD ZEZRAR

(&)

MIaE

1. ZEZERBAEEBE(XAR2FZERRAT)
80,000H§H§E@Z¢Eﬁ °

2. HEZERBAME(RAAAZERAR)
800,000H><H§1ﬁ2$§é °

3. REmBERIBREERARZARMBAR)
zso,ooohﬂ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ °

4, FZEDERTIEE(RAREZRARMBAR)
5,614,000/% f& 1D 2 #E ek o

5. RERIBNALRFN9,203M M0 2 B o

6. ZERERFTIKEBE(RRARZERMBAR)
6,000% % 1n 2 #E% o

7. LEREHARE RIZETAFTZ A
*‘f’ﬁEl BBREZRR T RMATE - WX
F.:E

BEXHEEEN R_FEAF+_A=1+—
B RRARIBEERIBTHASMERANRA]H
HEMBABZEZE(EERRZFREKRMIEXVE) 2 E

ﬂﬁx CHEERNXESFTHEEACEREEES
BRfMA - HRBERETARITHEARF K

RFTZ (SRR ©

ESRBRO[ES 2ER

RAFEARBE-ZZAF+-_A=+—B #
BARRZEERARAIZERARBAEENE
BB R I RBZRARNDOBRETER
R E AR -

ENN b S TN )= MN D NG i S S T
R BARBZEZARRBARRREMEA
ENERZ B HEFMGFE



Report of the Directors
EERHS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, shareholders (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register (the “Register of Substantial Shareholders’ Interests”) required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were

TERRARORABRRG 2EER
KRB

RZZBZAF+ZA=1+—8  BREARRIKRRE
HHERHIE336MF R EMTFRZ B LM EBR]
RigESTRM]) 2tk - MAANRA ARG KARBEAR
MERIARZBR(ANRAREEREBITHRAER
SN ¢

as follows:
Approximate

Name of Number of percentage of the
substantial shareholders Nature of interest shares held issued share capital Notes
FTERRER EEME FEROBE HERTRABAEIL B =
APL Interest of controlled corporation 144,385,776 64.16% 1
e E R AR 2
AGL Interest of controlled corporation 144,385,776 64.16% 2
e EE RIRGIAE 2
Lee and Lee Trust Interest of controlled corporation 144,385,776 64.16% 3

REGIEE 2 s
Highclere International Investment manager 11,948,000 5.02% 4

Investors Limited WEKIE

Allard Partners Ltd. Investment manager 11,272,000 5.00%

REKE

—ETNEFR SRTMNERATF
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

TERRARORABRRG 2EER

KE(E)

G

1.

This represents an interest in 144,385,776 shares of the Company
held by Wah Cheong Development (B.V.1.) Limited (“Wah Cheong”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Famestep Investments Limited which
in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of APL. APL was therefore
deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to have an interest in the shares in
which Wah Cheong was interested.

AGL owned approximately 74.36% interest in the issued share
capital of APL and was therefore deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to
have an interest in the shares in which APL was interested.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are
the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They
together owned approximately 52.40% interest in the issued share
capital of AGL and were therefore deemed, by virtue of the SFO,
to have an interest in the shares in which AGL was interested.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Highclere International
Investors Limited has filed a notice to the Company notifying that
they ceased to have notifiable interest in the Company as at 22
January 2010.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2009, no short positions were recorded in the Register
of Substantial Shareholders’ Interests.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, so far as was known

to the Directors, no other person had interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company which are required to be

recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders’ Interests.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

0]

44

Sharing of Management Services Agreement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1 February
2008, the Company entered into a sharing of management services
agreement (the “Sharing of Management Services Agreement”) with
AGL, a holding company and a connected person of the Company
as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
on 31 January 2008 and pursuant to which, the Company would
reimburse AGL the costs incurred in respect of the management
services provided by the management staff of AGL to the Group
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2008. The
annual caps for the transactions under the Sharing of Management
Services Agreement were set at HK$ 1,440,000, HK$ 1,584,000 and
HK$1,740,000 for each of three financial years ending 31 December
2010 respectively. The total amount paid to AGL for the year ended
31 December 2009 was HK$1,584,000.
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Report of the Directors
EERHS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

() Services Agreements

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 March

2009, the Company entered into the following two agreements

(the “Services Agreements”) with certain subsidiaries of SHK, the

associates of the substantial shareholder of the Company and hence

connected persons of the Company as defined under the Listing
Rules, both on 27 February 2009:

(a)

(b)

Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement

An insurance brokerage services agreement was entered
with Sun Hung Kai Insurance Consultants Limited (“SHK
Insurance”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK,
pursuant to which, SHK Insurance would agree to provide
packaged insurance brokerage services to the Group for a term
of one year commencing from 1 January 2009. SHK Insurance
would assist the Group in procuring insurance policies to be
taken out with third party insurers. The provision of such
services by SHK Insurance would be on SHK Insurance’s usual
terms for provision of the same services to an independent
third party and the premium for any insurance policy procured
would be the prevailing premium charged by SHK Insurance to
an independent third party when dealing on an arm’s length
basis having regard to any other special circumstances such
as arm’s length negotiated volume discounts. The aggregate
amount payable by the Group under this agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2009 should not exceed the annual
cap of HK$5.8 million. The total amount of insurance premium
paid to SHK Insurance for the term of the agreement was
approximately HK$5.2 million.

Corporate Secretarial Services Agreement

A corporate secretarial services agreement was entered
with Wineur Secretaries Limited (“Wineur Secretaries”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK, pursuant to which,
Wineur Secretaries would agree to provide the companies
in the Group with the services of a company secretary and
with the corporate secretarial services for a term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2009. The corporate secretarial
service fee was HK$1.3 million (exclusive of disbursements)
on an annual basis. The aggregate amount payable by the
Group under this agreement for the year ended 31 December
2009 should not exceed the annual cap of HK$1.45 million.
The total amount paid to Wineur Secretaries, for corporate
secretarial service fee and related disbursements, for the term
of the agreement was approximately HK$1.3 million.

an
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The transactions contemplated under the Sharing of Management
Services Agreement and the Services Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Continuing Connected Transactions were published in the Company’s
announcements dated 1 February 2008 and 2 March 2009 respectively and
are included in this Annual Report in accordance with the requirements
of Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company, being Messrs. Francis J. Chang
Chu Fai, Li Chak Hung and Carlisle Caldow Procter, have reviewed the
Continuing Connected Transactions and confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Continuing Connected
Transactions have been entered into in the manners stated above.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of Directors has
also received a letter from the Company’s auditors confirming that the
Continuing Connected Transactions:

(i)  have received the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors;

(i) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and
disclosed in the relevant

(i) have not exceeded the caps

announcements.

The Continuing Connected Transactions also constitute related party
transactions of the Group during the year which are detailed in note
33 to the financial statements pursuant to the requirements under the
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 and falls under the definition of
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
appropriate, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EERHS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 21 January 2010, the Company
entered into two new agreements (the “New Agreements”) with SHK
Insurance and Wineur Secretaries respectively for a term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2010. The annual caps for the transactions
under the New Agreements were set at HK$5.8 million and HK$1.5 million
respectively. The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors) are of the view that the New Agreements were entered into,
after arm’s length negotiations, on normal commercial terms and that
the terms of the New Agreements are fair and reasonable so far as the
Company and its shareholders as a whole are concerned. Further details
of the New Agreements have been published in the announcement of
the Company dated 21 January 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 24 to 36.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

During the year, Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the Company and
Grant Thornton were appointed by the shareholders of the Company as
auditors of the Company to fill the causal vacancy so arising.

The financial statements have been audited by Grant Thornton who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report
VR Glikaes

c' Grant Thornton
HE

To the members of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited
2REMNERA T

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Quality HealthCare Asia
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
"Group”) set out on pages 50 to 140, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
VR Glikes

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

24 March 2010
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Consolidated Statement

= ANAN Q > <
Re 2 E W R
For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_TTNF+-A=+—HILFE

of Comprehensive Income

2009 2008
ZEBNF ZETNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B e FET FHT
(Restated)
(1 E=3)
Revenue N 6 1,100,812 978,264
Other income and gains H AU R Y as 25,602 17,310
Changes in inventories recognised ERRARAX 2 FEE
as an expense (63,905) (55,829)
Employee benefits expense EEBFRAXZ (429,745) (374,893)
Depreciation e (20,000) (18,301)
Other expenses, net H At i SF 58 (523,777) (471,333)
Finance cost BhE & F 8 (1) (62)
Share of profit of a jointly JEAl — ) A 22
controlled entity =ikl 1 54
Profit before income tax RTS8 AR R 7 88,987 75,210
Income tax expense S HiF s 9 (13,062) (10,690)
Profit for the year and total FRBMNRER
comprehensive income ZHEKAZAE
for the year 75,925 64,520
Profit for the year and total LU PG F s R R
comprehensive income FAEZEBAEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NGIE 2SN 10 75,925 64,520
Earnings per share attributable A EHEE AEAL
to the owners of the Company FRAERER
during the year 12
Basic (HK cents) EARCE) 33.4 27.2
Diluted (HK cents) 5m (OB N/ATER N/AT 8 A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR

As at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
ZEBEAF ZETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M e FET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERGAE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 14 38,513 44,555
Goodwill S 15 17,414 17,414
Other intangible assets Hihm &= 16 9,880 9,880
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R — A R (b 5 2 #Ea 18 375 525
Deposits for purchases of items of BAMZE - BER
property, plant and equipment REEE RS 2,083 1,483
Financial assets at fair value through  FiBiEHIZ AT ETIEZ
profit or loss SRIEE 19 52,388 =
120,653 73,857
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 20 16,532 15,945
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 21 134,669 129,335
Prepayments, deposit and TEHIE Be& Rk
other receivables H fib e I8 39,251 39,760
Tax recoverable A Y B 7 18 3,420 3,466
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREEE 22 226,939 230,031
420,811 418,537
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables, other payables, B SN - BRI -
accruals and deposits received JEETRIE R B YIRS 23 178,990 161,491
Deferred revenue EEWA 19,354 17,180
Hire purchase contract payable FESFRIE A4 24 - 3
Tax payable FESF TR 2,933 9,062
201,277 187,736
Net current assets MENEEFE 219,534 230,801
Total assets less current liabilities #EERARBARS 340,187 304,658
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

sre IO (4

As at 31 December 2009
R-_FFNFH+_A=1—H

2009 2008
—ZEEAEF T )\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MfsE FH&T T
Non-current liabilities FkRBEMS
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIE A & 25 300 508
Net assets EEFE 339,887 304,150
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners RABHEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital N 26 22,504 22,987
Reserves (] 28(a) 317,383 255,394
Proposed final dividend R EAR B 11 - 25,769
Total equity Mt 339,887 304,150

Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin
HRECELE
Director

EE

Mark Wong Tai Chun
EKRH

Director

EZ
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Statement of Financial Position

7 ﬂ \ \\H/
T j( / _ﬁl_
As at 31 December 2009
RZFFNF+_A=1—H

2009 2008
—EENEF —ZET)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FE&T AT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B R A Z xS 17 384,319 434,679
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposit and TENHIE Be& Rk
other receivables B fE U IA 583 529
Tax recoverable A Y O] 7 18 3,420 3,466
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERREEE 22 123,525 111,576
127,528 115,571
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals FL B~ 5K I8 K FE R TR IA 9,908 8,886
Net current assets REEEFE 117,620 106,685
Net assets EERE 501,939 541,364
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 26 22,504 22,987
Reserves it 28(b) 479,435 492,608
Proposed final dividend FHIR R AR B 11 - 25,769
Total equity R 501,939 541,364
Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin Mark Wong Tai Chun
HREE{EE F KR8
Director Director
BFE BEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARBBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_TTNF+-A=+—HILFE

Share Share Retained Proposed Total

capital premium* profits*  dividend equity

[N B AR B R EFI* Bk E At

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BiE TR FAET FTRT TR THET
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZTENEF 23,893 103,034 133,534 46,951 307,412
—A—Bz&H
Profit and total comprehensive A&
income for the year FENLEE - - 64,520 = 64,520
Proposed final 2008 dividend BE_ZTNFRARE 11 = = (25,769) 25,769 =
Transactions with owners: HEFEAZIRS
Final and special 2007 ER-ZT+EF
dividends declared RE R RIS 11 - - - (46,951) (46,951)
Repurchase of shares BRI D 26 (906) (19,925) - = (20,831)
(906) (19,925) - (46,951) (67,782)
Balance at 31 December 2008 R =—ZZT\F
and 1 January 2009 +-RA=t—-BR 22,987 83,109 172,285 25,769 304,150
“ETHF
—B—Bz&%
Profit and total comprehensive  FREF %
income for the year ZH B - = 75,925 - 75,925
Transactions with owners: BREAZIRS
Final 2008 dividend declared ER-ZZETNEREKRE N - - - (25,638) (25,638)
Adjustment for final 2008 H_ETN\FRHE
dividend IR B 2 FE 11 - - 131 (131) =
Repurchase of shares FEER G 26 (483) (14,067) - - (14,550)
(483) (14,067) 131 (25,769) (40,188)
Balance at 31 R-ZBZhF
December 2009 TZA=t—Hz&8% 22,504 69,042 248,341 - 339,887

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * EHEBERERER=-ZTNF+_A=1+—
HK$317,383,000 (2008: HK$255,394,000) in the consolidated Bz &Ra B ERAN 2 iRa f##317,383,000
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009. BIL(ZZFZEN\F : 255,394,000/87T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AN AN %j]
AT ST
For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-_TTAF+-A=1—HILEE

2009 2008
ZEBEAF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Cash flows from operating activities & EE 2 HERE
Profit before income tax B P 4525 Al A 88,987 75,210
Adjustments for: KA
Finance cost BEER 1 62
Share of profit of a jointly JEAL — 1 2k R 428 11 1 3 05 )
controlled entity (1) (54)
Bank interest income RITFEIA (966) (3,794)
Interest income from financial assets ~ REBEBIEmE A FEERZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZF WA (2,270) =
Dividend income from unlisted REFLTHRE 2 REWA
investments (600) (871)
Depreciation e 20,000 18,301
Impairment losses on trade receivables 2 5 & FIE Z REEE 666 3,782
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of & EEYE « BE K&
property, plant and equipment, net B BERTRE 273 81
Gain on distribution of assets BE DK K = (377) =
Fair value gains on financial assets BERFRBEREZATEIRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SEEE AT ERS (4,372) =
Operating profit before working RETBEE B EF 2825
capital changes 101,341 92,717
Increase/(decrease) in an amount & — R £ [R) 12 I 1 ¥ FR0E
due to a jointly controlled entity #mn CRd) 151 (119)
Increase in inventories FEEM (587) (2,605)
Increase in trade receivables E 5 W R IE R (6,000) (15,465)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEfTFRIE © R & K& Epth fE RIE
deposits and other receivables wd S (gm) 986 (543)
Increase in trade payables, other B SEMNHIA - B ERFRIE
payables, accruals and FERTSRIE & B R &1 N
deposits received 17,609 30,110
Increase in deferred revenue IRAE AL AN 2,174 4,840
Cash generated from operations KEXBRAERE 115,674 108,935
Interest paid ErS e, (1) (62)
Income taxes paid BEHANTER (19,353) (7,258)
Net cash generated from RETBEE 2R EFHE
operating activities 96,320 101,615
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

e RBR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_TTNF+-A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
ZEBEAF ZETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities REFE2RERE
Purchases of items of property, BAME  BEKZEHEE
plant and equipment (14,344) (17,196)
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEYE - BE REEEB ERE
property, plant and equipment 3 3
Acquisition of financial assets at BASBERERATEIEZcMEE
fair value through profit or loss (48,016) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of BB AR - EMNBRERS
cash acquired - (28,212)
Deposits paid for purchases of property, BAYIZE - ME MR EDHiEE
plant and equipment (600) (1,228)
Dividend received from unlisted REFELEMHREZEWIRE
investments 600 871
Interest received BF 2 2,759 3,794
Proceeds from distribution of assets BEDIRFTS A 377 =
Net cash used in investing activities WEEEFRA 2R e FE (59,221) (41,968)
Cash flows from financing activities BIEEFE2RERE
Capital element of a hire purchase FESFREE S K 2 BAES D
contract payable (3) (1,897)
Repurchase of ordinary shares B B A% (14,550) (20,831)
Dividend paid EIRE (25,638) (46,951)
Net cash used in financing activities B EEENFT A 2 IR FE (40,191) (69,679)
Net decrease in cash and BERERRESEERDF
cash equivalents (3,092) (10,032)
Cash and cash equivalents R—BA—BZBEERERBEESEE
at 1 January 230,031 240,063
Cash and cash equivalents RtT-BA=1t—HZzERERERSEE
at 31 December 226,939 230,031

56 Quality HealthCare Asia Limited Annual Report 2009



Notes to Financial Statements

BTSSR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2009

#HE=

FENF A BLEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Quality HealthCare Asia Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

—  provision of medical services

—  provision of nursing agency, physiotherapy, dental and other
services

—  provision of elderly care services

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of
the Company is Wah Cheong Development (B.V.l.) Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate parent
undertaking of the Company is the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust.
The address of the principal place of business of the trustees of
Lee and Lee Trust is 24/F., Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The financial statements on pages 50 to 140 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2010.

—RER

EREMERARITARA DA —HRA
REAMKZIOER LA - M EELR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° A& ZRDNREBEHE R
SAERAR (BT £ -

FA - AKERETINEEERT

- RHBERYK

— REEENAM - WIRAE - TRIREAM
AR 7%

-  RHEEZRS

EERE ARRIZEEERARANEBE
22 Bf B 5E A 3L 2 Wah Cheong Development
(B.V.I.) Limited » M ZA"A A Z & 4 5 1 % AlLee
and Lee TrustZfE7EA ° Lee and Lee TrustZ {3
FEAZ MU BB EF S T8 1385 S B
ERE24E o

HRESOE140E 2 BERERTDIBBEHERS S
TR A FT M 2 B A B3RS 228 ([ F A
BmEER ] (ZEBBEMAEERZBILE
BUBHREER - BB ENRRE)RES
RAMEGIMARR - MERERNBEEBHE X
SFES EmAR( EWRA D 2 ERHKER

E °

HE_ZZNFT_RA=T—HIEFE UK
BREREZTeN _T-TF=-A_t+HA#H
HETIAT -
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FEAFI A= -ALFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the annual financial period
beginning on 1 January 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)  Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
an Associate

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving disclosures about financial

instruments
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
Various Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Other than as noted below, the adoption of these new HKFRSs has
had no material effect on how the results and financial positions for
the current and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain changes to
the format and titles of the primary financial statements and to
the presentation of some items within these statements. A third
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period is required when an entity applies an accounting
policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items
in its financial statements or when it reclassifies items in its financial
statements. It also gives rise to additional disclosures.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements
(continued)

The measurement and recognition of the Group’s assets, liabilities,
income and expenses is unchanged. However, some items that
were recognised directly in equity are now recognised in other
comprehensive income. HKAS 1 affects the presentation of owner
changes in equity and introduces a “Statement of comprehensive
income”. Comparatives have been restated to conform with
the revised standard. The Group has applied changes to its
accounting polices on presentation of financial statements and
segment reporting retrospectively. However, the changes to the
comparatives have not affected the consolidated or parent company
statement of financial position at 1 January 2008 and accordingly
the third statement of financial position as at 1 January 2008 is
not presented.

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or an associate

The amendment requires the investor to recognise dividends
from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate in profit
or loss irrespective the distributions are out of the investee’s pre-
acquisition or post-acquisition reserves. In prior years, the Company
recognised dividends out of pre-acquisition reserves as a recovery
of its investment in the subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity or
associates (i.e. a reduction of the cost of investment). Only dividends
out of post-acquisition reserves were recognised as income in
profit or loss.

Under the new accounting policy, if the dividend distribution is
excessive, the investment would be tested for impairment according
to the Company’s accounting policy on impairment of non-financial
assets.

The new accounting policy has been applied prospectively as
required by these amendments to HKAS 27 and therefore no
comparatives have been restated.

2. HRMFETHNEERERMBRE
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FEAFI A= -ALFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving disclosures about financial
instruments

The amendments require additional disclosures for financial
instruments which are measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position. These fair value measurements are categorised
into a three-level fair value hierarchy, which reflects the extent
of observable market data used in making the measurements.
In addition, the maturity analysis for derivative financial liabilities
is disclosed separately and should show remaining contractual
maturities for those derivatives where this information is essential
for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provisions in the amendments
and has not provided comparative information in respect of the
new requirements.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not affected the identified and
reportable operating segments for the Group. However, reported
segment information is now based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker. In the previous annual financial statements, segments were
identified by reference to the dominant source and nature of the
Group’s risks and returns. Adoption of this standard did not have
any effect on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The Group determined that the operating segments were the same
as the business segments previously under HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting.

Annual improvement 2009

In May 2009, the HKICPA issued annual improvement 2009 that
include an amendment to the Appendix to HKAS 18 Revenue
which provides additional guidance to determine whether an entity
is acting as a principal or an agent. As the amendment is to the
Appendix of HKAS 18, no effective date or transitional provision
is specified in the amendment.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Annual improvement 2009 (continued)

The amendment to the Appendix to HKAS 18 provides additional
guidance (the “Additional Guidance”) to determine whether an
entity is acting as a principal or an agent. Such determination
requires judgement and consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances. With reference to the Additional Guidance, the
Group has re-assessed certain of its business arrangements. As a
result of the assessment, the Group has retrospectively changed
the recognition and reporting/presentation of revenue arising from
certain arrangements previously reported/presented on a gross basis
(that is, based on the gross amount billed to a customer) to the net
basis (that is, based on the amount billed to the customer less the
amount paid to the corresponding supplier) as, in the opinion of
the directors, it would result in @ more appropriate presentation of
the revenue of the Group based on the substance of the underlying
arrangements.

The effect of the change in reporting/presentation of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is summarised below:

2. HRMFETHNEETERMBRE

/(&)

—EENFFEREHE)
BREGTEAFISRM B2 BT ARETER
BEEEEANKKEAS S REBEIMESI (TR
SMESI ) - EEER AT R EERIRARBL
FERIBN - 2EZBIMESIR - AREEH
FHEEETEBRY - RIBZANE - A5E
EERHEBRARER2IKBETEBR
YA - 2 BT AR (ARER B P Z iR
BREEER2IBPERRRFHEEE
(AMRRERBRP 2 RE SR  NARHER
ZeAE) RARESRRA  EHRAURRA
AL E BRI AREEZ WA -

FeEEERBERZER 2T AEBHTZEL
AT

2009 2008

—ZEEAEF —ZZET)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FABT

Decrease in revenue — Medical services WA A — BB AR T% 96,324 91,704
Decrease in other expenses, net H At 5 SOF RRR (96,324) (91,704)

Net change to the profit for the year FRm A E)FRE

Such change in reporting/presentation has had no impact to the
profit attributable to owners of the Company and earnings per
share of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008 or the retained profits and other components of the equity
of the Group as at 1 January 2009 and 2008.

Save as detailed above and except for in certain cases, giving rise
to new and revised accounting policies, revised presentation and
additional disclosures, the adoption of these new HKFRSs has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Annual improvement 2009 (continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain
new and amended HKFRS have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy
for the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. Information on new and amended HKFRSs that
are expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies
is provided below. Certain other new and amended HKFRSs have
been issued but are not expected to have a material impact of the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 3 Business combinations (Revised 2008)

The standard is applicable in reporting periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 and will be applied prospectively. The new standard
still requires the use of the purchase method (now renamed
the acquisition method) but introduces material changes to the
recognition and measurement of consideration transferred and the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities, and the measurement
of non-controlling interests (previously known as minority interest)
in the acquiree. The new standard is expected to have a significant
effect on business combinations occurring in reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013 and addresses the classification and measurement
of financial assets. The new standard reduces the number of
measurement categories of financial assets and all financial assets
will be measured at either amortised cost or fair value based on
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Fair
value gains and losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those on certain equity investments which will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the possible impact of the new standard on the Group’s
results and financial position in the first year of application.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG 2. EMHIRNZETE BB HRE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements
(Revised 2008 )

The revised standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 and introduces changes to the accounting
requirements for the loss of control of a subsidiary and for changes
in the Group’s interest in subsidiaries. Total comprehensive income
must be attributed to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
The directors of the Company do not expect the standard to have
a material effect on the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new
or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for financial instruments classified as fair
value through profit or loss which are stated at fair values.
The measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are described in note 4.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed
on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group's perspective. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of subsidiaries
(other than those under common control) is accounted for by
applying the purchase method. This involves the estimation
of fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition
date, regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the
financial statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position
at their fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

B8

3.4

Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre
or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.

Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or
more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to
joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control over an economic activity, and exists only when
the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the venturers.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in a jointly
controlled entity is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date
of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the determination of the Group’s share of the jointly
controlled entity’s profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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3.4

3.5

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entity is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the jointly
controlled entity’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The profit
or loss for the period includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly controlled entity for
the year, including any impairment loss on the investment in
jointly controlled entity recognised for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity. Where
unrealised losses on assets sales between the Group and its
jointly controlled entity are reversed on equity accounting,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Where the jointly controlled entity uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, adjustments
are made, where necessary, to conform the jointly controlled
entity’s accounting policies to those of the Group when the
jointly controlled entity’s financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.

Goodwill
Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising
on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill arising
from investment in a jointly controlled entity is set out in
note 3.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities. The cost of the business combination is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination.

Quality HealthCare Asia Limited Annual Report 2009

3. FRETHRMEE)

3.4

3.5

HEEHEEE)
RBERE  ARERARZERI R 2

a ARG B - 4% 7N 5% B 4 2K R4
CEZEEFEREEMEHRBERR
ZWEBRBEBEHAE D RARER
EEBROBER/FEHECHERE)E
BN - HIMEE BREAEEF AR KR
2HIERZKER BRREXE  BREF
MR Z N ARG R 2 R E 2 R
BEE -

AEEREAREZEHCEETRS 2 RS
B s R A SR ARG R 2 #a Y
i BAKERAAFZEFEXEHESR
EZRERBERUAEZEHERLDE - A
SETTEEREEEERENR © MER
EHAERAZ T RRLIFSANEE R
FEERTRBUR S REHMERE -
ARNARE R EREREHAMRARR
ZHI R M BREFIELBERTE - £
ZHFEG DR G RRERNEE
RE—Z-

e
T RSB EAAREEY BEY
EHEE - ARAARABHCETEEY
B2 B AR S 4 -

BEEPESHRARAERGRKRES
ZEBANEE BEMHRBEFAFE
ZHESIRH 2 B - R A M2 RN
RHBAAKBEMGETZEE  FTELZK
EZRERMBETZESTAZ AFER
B MEERBERBEHRAE -



Notes to Financial Statements

BTSSR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2009

#HE=

FENF A BLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date
is on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 3.7).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated
reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30")
in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated
against consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On
the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated
against consolidated reserves and is not recognised in the
income statement when all or part of the business to which
the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described below
in note 3.7.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

68

3.7

Impairment of non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life
or those not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill in particular
is allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to
which goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss
is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating
unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements

HEMEEE

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Bk - KB RPAERE

Medical equipment

B

Computer equipment and software
BISR A RS

Motor vehicles

B

The assets’ residual value, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

70

3.8

3.9

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Leases (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments of such assets, are included in property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligation under
finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance lease
agreements corresponds to those applied to comparable
acquired assets. The corresponding finance lease liability
is reduced by lease payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the lease terms except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:BHEHE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Financial assets 3.10 £MEE

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are
set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

—  financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- loans and receivables

Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Financial assets (continued)

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include:

—  Financial assets held for trading; and

—  Financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following
criteria are met:

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains
or losses on them on a different basis; or

—  the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial assets
is provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

74

3.10 Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

—  thefinancial asset contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Fair value is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no
active market exists. Fair value gain or loss does not
include any dividend or interest earned on these financial
assets. Dividend and interest income is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies in note 3.17 to
these financial statements.

The Group has designated its listed callable debt securities
at fair value through profit or loss in order to avoid the
need to recognise separately embedded derivatives which
were not closely related to the host debt contract.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair value

through profit or loss are reviewed to determine whether there

is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets

includes observable data that comes to the attention of the

Group about one or more of the following loss events:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

[t becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease

in the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial

assets. Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse

changes in the payment status of debtors in the group and,

national or local economic conditions that correlate with

defaults on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured

and recognised as follows:

()

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

76

POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the reversal occurs.

3.11 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals and hire purchase contract payable.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
interest related charges are recognised as an expense in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amount is recognised
in the profit or loss for the year.

Trade and other payables and accruals

Trade and other payables, and accruals are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial lease liabilities
Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less the
capital element of lease payments (note 3.9).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Inventories 3.12 B&

Inventories, including medicines and dispensary supplies,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
after making due allowance for any obsolete or slow moving
items. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred in the process of disposal.

Consumables for own consumption or provision of services
are stated at cost. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

3.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits) to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

78

POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Accounting for income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All charges to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in the profit or loss for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward as well as
other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Accounting for income tax (continued)

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) theentity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3.16 Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in advance
of the performance of the relevant services. Deferred revenue
is released to and recognised in the profit or loss when the
corresponding services are rendered or on a time proportion
basis over the terms of the service contracts.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

80

3.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable for the provision of services, sale of good, or

the use by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest and

dividends. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised

as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

from the provision of services, including medical services,
nursing agency, physiotherapy, dental and other services,
and elderly care services, upon the provision of the
relevant services or on a time proportion basis over the
terms of the service contracts, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Fixed-fee Contracts” in note
3.18;

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

rental income, on a time-proportion basis over the lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the right to receive payment has
been established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Fixed-fee contracts 3.18 EIEWEEHN

The Group has certain medical, dental and other service
contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide specific
services over the terms of the contracts for a fixed-fee in
which the level of services depends on uncertain future events
(the “Fixed-fee Contracts”). The financial reporting of these
Fixed-fee Contracts has been disclosed and/or accounted for
with reference to certain provisions of HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts. The Fixed-fee Contracts are in general of short
duration of 1 to 2 years.

Fees received or receivable under the Fixed-fee Contracts are
recognised on a time proportion basis over the terms of the
Fixed-fee Contracts. Expenses incurred in connection with
the Fixed-fee Contracts are charged to the profit or loss as
incurred. Deficiency in the contract liabilities is immediately
charged to the profit or loss by establishing a provision for
losses.

Amount received in advance for fixed-fee contracts are
recognised according to the accounting policy as set out in
note 3.16.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

82

POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed
when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

3.20 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group's
obligations under these plans is limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

Share-based employee compensation

The Company operates a share incentive plan for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity
settled transactions”).

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment under which the new measurement
policies have not been applied to options granted to employees
on or before 7 November 2002.

The financial impact of share options granted to employees
on or before 7 November 2002 under the share incentive
plan is not recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s financial
position until such time as the options are exercised, and
no charge is recorded in the profit or loss or the statement
of financial position for their cost. Upon the exercise of the
share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company
in the share premium account. Options which are cancelled
prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from
the register of outstanding options.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

84

POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation. All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of the purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially measured
at fair value at the date of acquisition and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount that would be
recognised in a comparable provision as described above
and the amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

3.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following
the Group’s major service lines, which represent the main
products and services provided by the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBEHME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Segment reporting (continued) 3.22 2E®mE(E)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

Medical services

— Nursing agency, physiotherapy, dental, and other
services

—  Elderly care services

—  Corporate and other

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are carried out at arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that
interest and dividend income, fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial cost, share
of profit of a jointly controlled entity and income tax, are not
included in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.

Segment assets include all assets but interests in jointly
controlled entity, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and tax recoverable.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. Segment liabilities
include all liabilities except hire purchase payable, tax payable
and deferred tax.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

86

3.23 Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the group if:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the group or exercise
significant influence over the group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the group or the Group's parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the property plant and equipment’s estimated
economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of
these property, plant and equipment to be within three to seven
years or over the lease terms. Changes in the expected level of
usage and technological developments could impact the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future
depreciation charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment at the reporting date is
disclosed in note 14 to these financial statements.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite life

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite life have suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 3.7. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates about
future cash flows and discount rates. In the process of estimating
expected future cash flows, management makes assumptions about
future revenues and profits. These assumptions relate to future events
and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may cause a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite life within the next financial year. Determining
the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the appropriate
adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk factors. Details
of the estimates of the recoverable amounts of cash generating
units containing goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite life
are disclosed in note 15 to these financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite life (continued)

At 31 December 2009, there was no impairment loss provision
made on goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite life. The
management considered that a reasonable change in discount
rates in the next twelve months is assessed to result in immaterial
change in the Group’s assessment of impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors including, inter alia, the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising from
the inability of its customers to make the required payments.
The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing of its trade
receivables balances, customer’s creditworthiness, past repayment
history and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of its customers was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment
loss might be higher than expected, the Group would be required
to revise the basis of making the allowance.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group’s
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is subject to
the agreement by the relevant tax authority. The Group recognises
liabilities for such transactions based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax in the period in which
such determination is made.

Quality HealthCare Asia Limited Annual Report 2009

4.

BAERIREEAFH 2 ELEE 2 BEN G
(%)

RZZETNFETA=1+—H UEREER
THEERFH BT EEIRBERRE
e BERERR KRR+ _EAFRKEEE
HHEFAKE T ERERFH I HEREL
BEZBEGHREMED -

ER R EWFE ZRE
AEEREHREANEECERENRB R —
HEeMEELTRE NEETEEEERE
BEE  AEEZRZAXETEEEBASE
NEEREHERVREEE 2 TR RIER K
BREIERNRZIEMR

AEBREPEE N XNABREMEH Z {4
FHEKFEHEE - AREDREREE ZEBUK
REBZRER BEZEE BEXNELR
BEZMHELREL G - METP ZBMBOR
MBEYSERREBERRARR  ~%E
BERTIEL BB EE

Frig®t
REEARBEZFMERERES S RERHH -
ETRHRFAEZREBBRER T BTG
BEREEST - AEBEERGEEABMNR
SIMHEMERZEXH BB - WLEFEEZ
RRARERBHINNTHER 22 BIEH
ERRFEELRE 2 BREZAEH -



Notes to Financial Statements

BTSSR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2009

&S

ZEENFFTAZ—HUEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deterred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2009
is set out in note 25 to these financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

On adoption of HKFRS 8, the Group identifies operating segments
and prepares segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the Group's senior executive
management for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group's business components and for their review of these
components’ performance.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide but under the overall control
of the Chief Executive Officer reporting to the Board of Directors.
Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of the other
operating segments. Summary details of the operating segments
are as follows:

(@) the medical services segment engages in the provision of
medical services;

(b) the nursing agency, physiotherapy, dental and other services
segment engages in the provision of nursing agency,
physiotherapy, dental, LASIK, ophthalmic and psychological

services;

(c) the elderly care services segment engages in the provision of
elderly care services; and
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EER(E)

(d) the corporate and other segment comprises the Group’s intra- (d) ®ERAMER  BEAEEZEERNE
group management service operations, which principally provides BRBES  FZRSEQARRREE -
management, treasury and other services to group companies, BB REAMRS - A REMEZERA K
together with other corporate income and expense items. XIEH °

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted at mutually agree SR 2 SHE RER IR IER B i 2 G0E

terms. IR5 °

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided REEASENTESERASEARESE

to the Group’s executive directors is set out below: ZEREHIIMT

Nursing agency,
physiotherapy, dental
Medical services and other services  Elderly care services  Corporate and other Eliminations Consolidated
HENGH  ERE
EREH RS EERE EEREH B &4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZREAE CTI)\E CBEAE CTT)\E CBBAE T\ ZEBAE —ET)\E ZEEAF 53\ ZBEAF _TI)\£
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000
Tén Tér THr TEr TRr TEr  TEx  TEr  TExn  TEr @ TEm TEn
(Restated) (Restated)
(&=5) (7))
Income from external REIVE
customers ERZHA 905262 784509 97201 97557 98349 96,198 - - - - 1100812 978264
Income from HEARA
inter-segment * 1,248 117 26,810 25,234 5295 5,184 123 200 (33476)  (31,789) - -

Other income and gain# ~~ EfbRARME4 15,028 10,508 1,033 1,001 493 2% 840 840 - - 17,394 12,645

Reportable seqment revenue ATHEAZMA ~ 921,538 796,188 125044 123792 104,137 101678 963 1040 (33476) (31,789) 1,118206 990,909

Reportable segment results AT AE¥E 72,578 63,397 10,192 9,586 7118 6,536 (9,709) (8,966) - - 80,779 70,553

Unallocated interestand ~~ #ARFIER

dividend income REMA 3,836 4,665

Fair value gains on finandlal BB

assets at fair value NFE5IE
through profit or loss SHEEL 4312 -
AFEhE
Finance cost HEER (1) (62)
Share of profit of a jointly ~ [E{5— R
controlled entity A 1 54 - - - - - - - - 1 54

Profit before income tax  BRETE AT 88,987 75210

Income tax expense ilcil5 (13,062)  (10,690)

Profit for the year ERET 7595 64,50

#  Excluding unallocated interest and dividend income and fair value #  DTEERSEMERBREWA - LARERE
gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. SIRATESRZ @A E 2 A THERE °

*  These figures are not included in revenue mentioned elsewhere * WWEET D RIERN NI R A b 30 Pt
in these financial statements. ZUAR o
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EERGE)
Nursing agency,
physiotherapy, dental
Medical services and other services  Elderly care services  Corporate and other Eliminations Consolidated
EENGR NERR
BRER AHREAEE EERB LEREL H# &&
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
IEENF CTT)\E ZEEAE CTT)\E ZEENf CTT)\E ZRENF CTIT)\£ ZEEAE CIT)\E ZEEAE _IR)\E
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEr Tz TEr  TER T TEx TEr  TEx  TEr @ TEm  TEn
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E3) (#E5))
Reportable segment assets  REAEAE 290772 310,43 26,274 39,947 37,433 32842 130,802 105371 - - 485281 488,403
Interest in a jointly-controlled AT AR5
entity tEER 375 525 - - - - - - - - 375 525
Financial assets at fair EBERR
value through profit or loss  ATFEFIE 2 52,388 =
Ta recoverable YEE 3420 3,466
Total assets B 541,464 492,394
Reportable segment liabilities ATHEAEEE ~ 162,892 145,01 16,357 16,580 14,091 12,816 5,004 4184 - - 198344 178,671
Hire purchase contract ~~ EERREEAH
payable - 3
Tax payable JEBiBR 293 908
Deferred tax liabiities BLREER 300 508
Total liabilties @8k 21577 188,244
Depreciation & 15,156 12,285 3,807 4520 823 1,335 214 161 - = 20,000 18,301
Impairment losses on trade & MR
receivables AERR 60 2829 - 91 66 3 - - - - 666 3782
Loss on disposaliwrite-off of {1/ $4% -
items of property, KR Rkt
plant and equipment, net  EIEFE 254 21 6 8 13 17 - - - = bIE} 81
Capital expenditures BRRx 12,123 24,302 1122 5112 475 610 24 359 - = 14,344 30,383

No further geographical information is presented as over 90% of

the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in Hong Kong,

and over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in Hong Kong.

The largest external customer of medical services segment accounted
for 11.2% (2008: 12.1%) of the Group’s revenue.

AR AREEBIO%B W ANREEFTEES » BAE
EBo0% EEMMNES @ I E 25| b
Eht o

EERESEZHRRINEBELERER KA
1M2%(ZFEZENF : 12.1%) °
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6. REVENUE 6. WA
The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to these REE 2 FEXBE R BRERMTNHRE - K
financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from SBEEBIELEEE WA

these activities.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised during RERNBERREASEFEZXBF 2 WALT
the year is as follows:

2009 2008
“EBEAE —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(g E75)
Revenue from rendering: IR TRIEZ WA -
— Medical services — BB 905,262 784,509
— Nursing agency, physiotherapy, —#EEN4EFT « PIHEAE -
dental and other services TR E A BR 7S 97,201 97,557
— Elderly care services —EE R 98,349 96,198
Total revenue HBIA 1,100,812 978,264
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7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BREAEHANEF
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRFTS R ADEFIAHIRR  (GTA) THIBIE -
2009 2008
ZEBAF ZET)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT

Cost of inventories sold and dispensary ~ HE&EFE MFEHERE M

and other supplies consumed H At A a2 A 63,905 55,829
Depreciation e 20,000 18,301
Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 WA 2 R B BE 666 3,782
Operating lease charges: AR

Land and buildings THREF 94,671 78,333

Equipment B 55 55

94,726 78,388
Employee benefits expense & B AR

(including directors’ (BIEEEEHM

remuneration (note 13)): (FF5E13)):

Salaries, wages, allowances e I& - FRRIEA

and bonuses 420,480 366,499

Retirement benefits scheme RIRAE AT B R

contributions (defined (FREHFKETED)
contribution scheme) (note (a)) (FfzE(a)) 9,265 8,394
429,745 374,893
Auditors’ remuneration % 1R B 540 1,398
Foreign exchange loss, net bE 5 18588 22 18
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE MEmE

items of property, plant B &l 2 B8 E 5

and equipment, net 273 81
Revenue related to the Fixed-fee ERAEFERES L2

Contracts (note (b)) (Bt E(b)) (119,201) (111,911)
Expenses related to the Fixed-fee BHETERE SR 2

Contracts 105,130 94,619
Bank interest income (note (c)) RITFI BN (MFE() (966) (3,794)
Interest income from financial REEEASABRIZATE

assets designated at fair value PR ©REE 2 A BWA (FFEE()

through profit or loss (note (c)) (2,270) -
Sales of medicine and dispensary HEsEy REEAD (M)

supplies (note (c)) (5,418) (5,103)
Rental income from sub-lease (note (c)) D FAFEE U A (FfE(c)) (107) (106)
Dividend income from unlisted KA EEMIRE 2B BWA (FEE))

investments (note (c)) (600) (871)
Gain on distribution of assets (note (c))  &EM KIS (HIFE(Q) (377) =
Fair value gains on financial assets EERBEBBRIZATEEREZ

designated at fair value through SRIEEZ A TEWE (i)

profit or loss (note (c)) (4,372) -
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94

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued)
Notes:

(@) At 31 December 2009, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to its
retirement benefits scheme in future years (2008: Nil).

(b) Revenue related to the Fixed-fee Contracts was included in
revenue from rendering medical services, and nursing agency,
physiotherapy, dental and other services.

(©) Included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

FINANCE COST

7. BRATEHANER (%)
fi3E -

() R-TTAF+-A=+—8 ~%EY

BEADRMBEAT MR D LY R

E)Z%&W?E?‘F'J?r%ﬂz HF(ZBBNEF:

B

(b) BRABEEWRES KN ZWAF ATRHEER
AR GER N AP - WIRRE - TRIRE
1 BR7E 2 AA o

(© %HA%%%%EH&ZE&%%ZFE{MW\&H&E&J

8. MEEH

2009 2008
ZEBENEF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
Interest charges on: FMEZH
Hire purchase contract wholly BERAFREBHEEZHEEL
repayable within five years 1 62

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits for the year has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rate of taxation
prevailing in the country in which the Group operates. No overseas
profits tax was provided for the year ended 31 December 2008 as
there was no estimated assessable profits.

9. FRBHRAX

BENGHERFAMTRRTUETNA16.5%
(ZFTN\F  16.5%) ZHEEE - FRB/I
N2 BB B IR A G A B AR TS M AN K B
REMEBRERZHEGFE - ARAEFTLE
ERBOERN - WBE_ETNF+_A=+—
BRI BHRBINS TR -

2009 2008
—EEhEF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT

Current tax — Hong Kong RER— B
Charge for the year FRRIEXZ H 13,771 12,130
Overprovision in prior years FFBREEE (514) (815)
13,257 11,315
Current tax — Overseas AER =g AN 13 =
13,270 11,315
Deferred tax — current year (note 25) JEERITE —AFEE (FizE25) (208) (625)
Total income tax expense FriS i 4258 13,062 10,690
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Reconciliation between tax and accounting profit at

tax rates:

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

9.

applicable

FreBipx (4&)

RERMERFE 2 HERETHENH R

2009 2008
ZEBEBAF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Profit before income tax R P45 25 Al A 88,987 75,210
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory — Z&EBEFERRAE 2 FHIE
tax rate 14,682 12,410
Effect on opening deferred tax of F{ &R LI HAFIELERTE 2 &
decrease in rate - (65)
Tax effect of profits attributable to FE{G — &R b 5 A 2 Bl s 2
a jointly controlled entity - 9)
Overprovision in prior years AR (514) (815)
Income not subject to tax TR 2 WA (321) (833)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ “NEJFIREIARIE 2 57 65 307
Tax losses for the year RERZ N EHIBEE
not recognised 837 624
Tax losses utilised from B AR 2 BEE R
previous periods (2,575) (827)
Others Hfb 888 (102)
Income tax expense FEHAX 13,062 10,690
ZETNEFFR SRTMERAT 95
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HEZ

FEAFI A= -ALFE

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS

11.

96

OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$75,925,000 (2008: HK$64,520,000), a profit of
HK$763,000 (2008: HK$2,583,000) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

10. R AR ABAGEF

RNAREE NGRS 75,925,000/ T (=
T\ : 64,520,000 ) EF  BAKRRA]
B 53R 7= 2 % F) B763,0008 T ( Z T T )\ F ¢
2,583,000/ 7T) °

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
Dividends attributable to the year FREMKRE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZETNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Proposed final — Nil FHIR AR AR B — B AR E @ AR T L
(2008: HK11.25 cents) (ZZZNEF : 11.2581l)
per ordinary share - 25,769
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date had not been RIWEBRERKE Z RARKRENME B HAR
recognised as a liability at the reporting date, but reflected as an BRAABE BERMABE_ZTENFE+=
appropriation of retained profits for the year ended 31 December A=T—HILFEZRERMNDE -

2008.
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#HE=

1

12.

. DIVIDENDS (continued)

FENF A BLEE

11.

Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year

BE (&)
F P RIR A 2 - — BB A IR B

2009 2008
—EEhEF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Final dividend for the year ended HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HILFE
31 December 2008 of HK11.25  Z REARR S @R E @AR11.25%1l
cents per ordinary share 25,769 -

Adjustment for 2008 final dividend === )\ F R #A% S A% (Ffi7E(a))

(note (a)) (131) -

Final dividend for the year ended HZE-ZZ+F+_-_A=+—HIt

31 December 2007 of HK5.25 FE 2 RS SR EBAS. 2581l
cents per ordinary share - 12,544
Special dividend for the year ended &2 =& +F+=-A=+—HIt
31 December 2007 of HK14.4 FE2FRIBE S EBA14.481
cents per ordinary share - 34,407
25,638 46,951

Note: PE -

(@) The adjustment was due to the repurchase and cancellation (@ ABRTARE-_ZZTNFRAKREEH
of 1,164,452 ordinary shares of the Company prior to the B 2 A BE O N 5E 881,164,452/ AN A ] &
record date of the final 2008 dividend and, therefore, the AR - IR G I = A LIEAR S o
related shares did not rank for this dividend payment.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SR ER

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$75,925,000
(2008: HK$64,520,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 227,530,468 (2008: 237,185,926) in issue during
the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the years ended
31 December 2008 and 2009, as the Company had no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the respective years.

FIREREF THIRIEAR R FHES ARG F AR
#175,925,0005% 75 ( — & Z J\ £ : 64,520,000

BIT) c ARFE AL BT IR INE TS E
227,530,468%( —Z = )\ : 237,185,926/% )
ATE o

HRARABNZEFEALELEEHEYE
ZEBTEBR  RUERIBE_TTN\EF

R_EZNF+_A=t—BLFEZERE
SEERM -
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 13.EEFMEAVESHAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

98

Directors’ emoluments Exie
Director's fee Other emoluments Sub-total Total
Ezhe HitM & N Eh
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
& benefits Discretionary scheme
in kind bonuses contributions
e 28
RENER  BERL BAGEMER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT THEx TFTHERT THER TExXT TER
2009 —EENE
Independent Non-executive BUFRITES
directors:
Mr. Li Chak Hung ZEIEEA 110 - - - - 110
Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai HEBLL 88 - - - - 88
Mr. Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter %54 88 - - - - 88
Executive directors: HnTES:
Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin RECEA - 4,104 128 12 4,244 4,244
Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun FRBEE(EEED
("Mr. Wong") - 924* - - 924 924
Non-executive director: FHNTES
Mr. Arthur George Dew W EEE(TREED
("Mr. Dew") - 660* - - 660 660
286 5,688 128 12 5,828 6,114
2008 —TINE
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
directors:
Mr. Li Chak Hung TEELA 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai BEELE 80 - - - - 80
M. Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procterft 4 80 - - - - 80
Executive directors: HTES:
Dr. Lincoln Chee Wang Jin RECEE = 4,015 641 12 4,668 4,668
Mr. Wong Eind = 840* 175 = 1,015 1,015
Non-executive director: FHITES
Mr. Dew St - 600* - - 600 600
260 5,455 816 12 6,283 6,543
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

*

On 31 January 2008, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Sharing of Management Service Agreement”) with AGL,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to reimburse AGL
the costs incurred in respect of management, consultancy,
strategic and business advice services provided by Mr. Dew and
Mr. Wong to the Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2008 (the “Management Service Fee"”). The
Management Service Fee was determined with reference to the
percentage of time that Mr. Dew and Mr. Wong devoted to the
affairs of the Group against the amount of time they devoted
to the affairs of AGL. The Management Service Fee for the year
ended 31 December 2009 included in the above disclosure
amounted to HK$1,584,000 (2008: HK$1,440,000). Further
details of the Sharing of Management Service Agreement are
also set out in an announcement of the Company dated 1
February 2008.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2008: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office during the year (2008: Nil).

B.EEFMRAUEEFALE)

EEsMe(E)

*

RZTBZN\E—A=1+—08 A aHK
EEETY—ERE(EERYE S EH
#F) Bt ARRCREENBAEE
HUREERTFREMNAEERBER B
B RESMEREBEZZREEEZK
RNIEERBE])  BRAH=-"ZZN\F
—A—HRRAH=F  -EBREEHZ
BIEERTERERAEE 2 EHBATFH
2R AU EERBAEEZEHM
PZREEAHMEE HE-_ZTTNAE
T A=+ BHUEFEZEBREEE
A EREER - &% A1,584,0007 7T
(=2 )\ £ : 1,440,000/ 7T) o B IRTE
DB E 2 — BB INEHI R B AR A
MN-BENE-A—BBMZAHA -

F R BT SRR KR T R AT B
SXEH(—ETN\F &) -

FR - ARELEREFAESINEAME
ERMAREBEHIMAREE L 2 RS HES
BERmE(CETNE &) -

—ETNEFEFR SRTMNERATF 929
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13. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year did not
include any directors (2008: None). Details of the remunerations
of the five (2008: five) non-director highest paid individuals for
the year are as follows:

B.EEFHRAEVESHFAL(E)

EfUREHAL
SEARBRURSHFALTTIREENER(Z
ZTN\F  E) Au(ZZFTN\F : Af)&RS
FALTCEES)RFRZHFMFBOT

2009 2008

—ZEEAF TR )N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET T

Salaries, bonuses and allowances &  1E4L K& 2L 40,103 37,098
Retirement benefits scheme BRIREFETEIHR (R T HE-RETED)

contributions (defined
contribution scheme) 60 60
40,163 37,158

The remunerations of the above five non-director highest paid
individuals, which include doctors practising on their own accounts
pursuant to an employee-type contract, fell within the following
bands:

NERBHEZE &S HAL(BEREESR
BRBIRRZBE)ZMEN T

Number of individuals

AE
2009 2008
ZEBENF ZETNF

Emolument bands [ e

HK$5,000,001- HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T — 5,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001- HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7 —6,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$6,000,001- HK$6,500,000 6,000,00178 7T — 6,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$6,500,001- HK$7,000,000 6,500,001% 7T — 7,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$7,000,001- HK$7,500,000 7,000,0018 7T — 7,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$7,500,001- HK$8,000,000 7,500,001/ 7T —8,000,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$11,500,001- HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 7c—12,000,000/5 7T 1 -
HK$12,000,001- HK$12,500,000 12,000,001;&7T— 12,500,000/ 7T - 1
5 5
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

— GROUP 14. 9% - RERRZE KB
Furniture, Computer
fixtures equipment
Leasehold and office Medical and Motor
improvements equipment equipment  software vehicles Total
B £ER EN
HENXEE BLZRE BERE REREH B st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$S'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TERT TERT TET TET TET
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEN§-F—-H
Cost WAE 94,018 22,082 32,819 17,829 545 167,293
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (70,815) (17,025  (23,242)  (13,483) (291)  (124,856)
Net book amount EEFE 23,203 5,057 9,577 4,346 254 42,437
Year ended 31 December HEZ-ZEN\E

2008 +ZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 23,203 5,057 9,577 4,346 254 42,437
Additions WE 10,037 1,967 4,012 1,777 = 17,793
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yok B AR (M3E29)

(note 29) 635 490 1,476 109 - 2,710
Disposals HE (46) (31) (2) (5 = (84)
Depreciation e (11,111) (1,606) (3,785) (1,747) (52) (18,301)
Closing net hook amount HAEEFE 22,718 5,877 11,278 4,480 202 44,555
At 31 December 2008 and ~ R=ZBBN\F+=A=+-H

1 January 20009 E=BBNE-F-H
Cost RAME 102,231 24,010 37,975 19,573 545 184,334
Accumulated depreciation 2EIE (79,513)  (18,133)  (26,697)  (15,093) (343)  (139,779)
Net book amount EEFE 22,718 5,877 11,278 4,480 202 44,555
Year ended 31 December HEZ-BBAE

2009 TZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 22,718 5,877 11,278 4,480 202 44,555
Additions NE 6,015 1,057 5,015 2,169 88 14,344
Disposals HE (187) (148) (49) (2) = (386)
Depreciation b (11,220) (1,671) (5,079) (1,968) (62)  (20,000)
Closing net hook amount HRRHE 17,326 5,115 11,165 4,679 228 38,513
At 31 December 2009 R=BEAF+=A=1-H
Cost WAE 107,392 24,704 42,921 21,727 633 197,377
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (90,066)  (19,589)  (31,756)  (17,048) (405)  (158,864)
Net book amount REFE 17,326 5,115 11,165 4,679 228 38,513
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HEZ

15.

102

FEAFI A= -ALFE

GOODWILL - GROUP

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

15. & - A KH

B Z BREFER DT T

2009 2008
ZEBEBAF ZET)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January W—A—H
Gross carrying amount 4REREE 24,324 8,268
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE (6,910) (6,910)
17,414 1,358
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—HZKEFE 17,414 1,358
Acquisition of subsidiaries W RE B A = (B 5E29)
(note 29) - 16,056
Net carrying amount R+=ZA=+—BZEmFE
at 31 December 17,414 17,414
At 31 December R+t=BA=+—8
Gross carrying amount RARE(E 24,324 24,324
Accumulated impairment ZFHRE (6,910) (6,910)
17,414 17,414

As further detailed in note 3.5 to these financial statements, the
Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations that permitted goodwill with cost and accumulated
impairment of HK$541,361,000 as at 1 January 2005 in respect
of business combinations which occurred prior to 2001 to remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves. Goodwill at 31 December
2009 represented goodwill for which the agreement date of business
combination is on or after 1 January 2001.
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15. HE-FKE(E)

BROCEAHESZAERTEEERFHZ
HimPEEMZ16) ELNREATREE
BT BREEBMAR ETTRERR

15. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)

Goodwill and other intangible assets (note 16) with indefinite useful
lives acquired through business combination have been allocated to
the following cash-generating unit/group of cash-generating units
for impairment testing:

e an elderly care home cash-generating unit (the “Tuen Mun s REZRBOERNz —EEERBESESE
Elderly Care Home CGU") within the elderly care services B ([HEPIEERIRGEEBN])
segment

e certain medical services group cash-generating units (collectively s REERBIERNZETEERGEER

the “GHC CGU") within the medical services segment PELEM (B aRReEELEM])

ENRESREELBM 2 HERTEERER
FHzEMETEEZREEDRT

The carrying amounts of goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives allocated to each of the cash generating units
are as follows:

Tuen Mun
Elderly Care Home CGU GHC CGU Total
EMEERRECELEN BRASELEQ st

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

28N _—ZTTN\| B®RL "TT\| ZBEHR _—TIN
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
THET TEL THET THET THET TET

Carrying amount of goodwill EZEEAEE 1,358 1,358 16,056 16,056 17,414 17,414
Carrying amount of other TEEEBFHZERE

intangible assets with (fizE16)

indefinite useful lives

(note 16) - - 9,880 9,880 9,880 9,880

The recoverable amounts for the Tuen Mun Elderly Care Home
CGU and the GHC CGU were determined based on value-in-
use calculations covering detailed five-year cash flow projections
followed by extrapolation of expected cash flows at grow rates
stated below. The growth rates reflect the long-term average growth
rates for the service lines of these cash generating units.

EREERRCELBURRRRAEELEM
ZAWEEDRBEREFECAFRERER
AzERBERTIERXEHNBEARERE
MERE - WEERREERSESEMREE
AzREFHREK -
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15.

104

FEAFI A= -ALFE

GOODWILL - GROUP (continued) 15. BE-FxKB(E)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations were as SEFERABRERMAZEEREOT
follows:
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZETNF
Tuen Mun Tuen Mun
Elderly Care Elderly Care
Home CGU GHC CGU Home CGU GHC CGU
HEER BRESELE ©LPMEZR sRASEAL
REEESBEN By RMeELEN B
Growth rates TR - 2.5% - 3%
Discount rates #Frin & 14.79% 14.79% 12.83% 12.83%

The budgeted revenue and results of operations have been
determined based on the past performance of the Tuen Mun Elderly
Care Home CGU and the GHC CGU and management’s expected
market development. The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

No impairment provision is considered necessary for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

Apart from the considerations described in determining the value-
in-use of the cash generating units above, the Group’s management
is not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates. However, the estimate
of recoverable amounts of the Group’s cash generating units is
particularly sensitive to the discount rates applied. The impact from
a reasonable change in the discount rate is assessed in note 4 to
these financial statements together with other critical accounting
estimates and assumptions.
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP 16. Htb BLEE - &
2009 2008
—EEhE ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Gross carrying amount R—A—BZREAE
at 1 January 9,880 -
Net carrying amount R—A—BZEREFE
at 1 January 9,880 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE M B A B (Ft5E29)
(note 29) - 9,880
Net carrying amount at R+ A=+—AZEEFE
31 December 9,880 9,880
Gross carrying amount at Rt+=-—A=+—BZRKEE
31 December 9,880 9,880
Other intangible assets represent trademarks acquired as part of a HEFEEEREESH (T2 ME 2D
business combination (note 29). The useful lives of the trademarks 12 Rz EAFHBERRET R ERE
are estimated to be indefinite based on the current market condition ERBMmSERBEAMMGE ATEE - REA
and management'’s expected market development, as management EEEMGEERRANEETRZESMNEWE
believes there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which AJ T8 R,z BARR PR i o
the trademarks are expected to generate net cash inflows for the
Group.
Details of the impairment testing of the trademarks with indefinite ERE 2 A 4 B 2 r iR (BRI S SR IB O AN B
useful lives are set out in note 15 to these financial statements. M FRMIFES ©

—TThEFH SRENERAT 105



Notes to Financial Statements

BTSSR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2009

HEZ

FEAFI A= -ALFE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 17. R B ARl 2w — A E
2009 2008
—EENE —ET)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - A AE 35,443 35,443
Due from subsidiaries N NG 1,099,221 1,146,051
Due to subsidiaries JEASHHT B A &) R IE (323,003) (319,473)
811,661 862,021
Less: Provision for Impairment* B ORE RS (427,342) (427,342)
384,319 434,679

106

# An impairment of HK$427,342,000 (2008: HK$427,342,000)
was recognised for certain unlisted investments in and
amounts due from subsidiaries with a total carrying amount
of HK$461,922,000 (2008: HK$462,959,000) because certain
subsidiaries have been loss-making for some time and certain
amounts due from subsidiaries are considered to be not
recoverable. There was no change in the impairment account
during the current year.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 are

as follows:

Name of company

Place/country
of incorporation
and operations

Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

17. A B A a2 EHE— 2 E (E)

RZBBENFET_A=T—HZEXEHNBRA

HENT

Percentage of

issued capital held
by the Company

Principal activity

EMmRL ERTLE EARBEELD
NCIEE: EEME HX A BITRAEA L TEER
Medical services
BRRH%
Berkshire Group Limited British Virgin 1 ordinary 100% Provision of
Islands/Hong Kong share of healthcare services
RBELES/BH US$1 each AR IR
1R REE
1R 2 LBk
CASE Specialist Limited * Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 100% Provision of
BB shares of aesthetic services
HK$1 each REBZEXARG
10,0000k F A H &
18I 2 EimR
GHC Holdings Limited * Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 100% Investment holding
SRBEEEERER AR B shares of REER
HK$1 each
10,000/ F A H &
1T &k
Marvellous Way Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary 100% Operation of
B shares of Chinese medicine
HK$1 each centres
10M R EE REREEER
1B &R
Quality HealthCare Medical Hong Kong 13 ordinary 100% Provision of medical
Centre Limited BB shares of facilities and services
EREEERPOARAT HK$100 each R AR B R e I AR TS
13k R EE
10078 7T 2 & i@ Ak
Quality HealthCare Medical Hong Kong 2 ordinary 100% Provision of contract
Services Limited B shares of healthcare services
FREEREARAA HK$1 each REE DRERS
2R EREE

1T BB
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

108

(continued)

Place/country
of incorporation

Name of company and operations

Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

17. A B a2 EE— 2 a(E)

Percentage of
issued capital held

by the Company

Principal activity

AR, ER1T NI e ]
NG e EBERAFE BRITRIBIL TEEH
Nursing agency, physiotherapy, dental and other services
BENAR - WEBRE - FRREMRE
Quality HealthCare Hong Kong 2 ordinary 100% Provision of
Professional Services Limited BB shares of professional services
HK$1 each REFERS
2Rk mEE
17872 Ak
Allied Medical Practices Hong Kong 2 ordinary 100% Provision of contract
Guild Limited BB shares of healthcare services
R HEFRAA HK$1 each RS DRERS
2R EREE
17872 & AR
Quality HealthCare Dental Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary 100% Provision of
Services Limited BB shares of dental services
FRIBHEERAD A HK$1 each TR T RERR TS
1,000% & f A (&
17872 AR
Quality HealthCare Nursing Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary 100% Provision of
Agency Limited BB shares of nursing agency services
SREENBMAERAT HK$10 each R IR AT RS
1,000/ &R E (B
1078 7T 2 3 AR
Quality HealthCare Physiotherapy Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Provision of
Services Limited BB shares of 100% physiotherapy services
FRYIBRERBERADA HK$1 each R IRTS
1,000k F i HE &
17872 i AR
Quality HealthCare Psychological Hong Kong 1 ordinary 100% Provision of
Services Limited BB share of psychological services
FROERRAERAR HK$1 each RO R RS
1REREE
17872 & AR
Dynamic People British Virgin 1 ordinary 100% Provision of LASIK and
Group Limited Islands/Hong Kong share of optical surgical services
ERREUEE/BE US$1 each M AR FAR N F MR 7%
1R SR EE
1% SR
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
(continued)

17. A B A a2 EHE— 2 E (E)

Place/country Particulars of Percentage of
of incorporation issued ordinary issued capital held
Name of company and operations share capital by the Company Principal activity
AR, [5%:¢h) ERAREE
NCIEE EEME ER EBERAFE ERTREABIL TEEK
Elderly care services
#ZRH%
Quality HealthCare Nursing Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary 100% Provision of
Home Limited B shares of elderly care services
FRETEZRRAA HK$1 each REEZRS
1,000/% F R 8
17872 & AR
QHES Limited British Virgin 1 ordinary 100% Provision of
ERERBERAA Islands/Hong Kong share of elderly care services
BB US$1 each REEZRS
iR &R mEE
1% 2 LAk
Quality HealthCare Man Kee Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary 100% Provision of
Elderly Limited # BB shares of elderly care services
EREREEARAA! HK$1 each REEE RS
1,000 B R EE
1B & Bk
Corporate and other
ERHAM
Sino Success (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary 100% Provision of
B8 shares of corporate services
HKS$1 each RESERS
2R EREE

T2 BB

*  Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2008. Further
details of this acquisition are included in note 29 to these
financial statements.

& Issued capital held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

* REBEZTTNFT_A=+—HILFE
RUHE - BRI TEE 2 & — P EER
INEATSER R PIFE29 o

o ARRAREERAZBEEITRA

ERFANZARBIMBAR  REFZER
DEBREAFREZRENBRASBFEE
ZEREH - EERRIIBEMMB IR 25
BFEEHRBRILE
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18.

110

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 18. A—EHEEHI ¥ oS —
ENTITY - GROUP 58

2009 2008
—BBREF —TEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T35t T
Share of net assets E{EFEE 574 573
Due to a jointly controlled entity — fE{+—REHRIEHID KA (199) (48)
375 525

Details of the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity, which

AEER-—FHARZEHECE(RIFELTARE

is an unlisted corporate entity, are as follows: B Y RERSERIE N
Place of
incorporation  Particulars of issued % of Principal
Name of joint venture and operation ordinary share capital interest held activity
A R
RE AT BB =E ST ERTEBRREFE BEEZEEIL FEXK
Poltallock Limited Hong Kong 17,796 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 50% Inactive
B 17,796 % AR EI{E 10078 7T 2 & B AR BEEE

The Group's share of the jointly controlled entity’s assets, liabilities,

AEBEREZARZEHEEZEE  BFE K

income and expenses are as follows: ARFZIAT
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Current assets mENEE 657 1,006
Current liabilities mEafsE (83) (433)
Net assets FEE 574 573
Revenue WA - 616
Other income E A 1 =
1 616
Total expenses B = (562)
Profit for the year F A A 1 54

The Group has not had any contingent liabilities or other
commitments relating to its jointly controlled entity directly.
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. ERERZEAFEIR2EME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP E-£H

2009 2008

—EThE —EENF

HK$000 HK$'000

T T

Listed debt securities designated 18/ E &A@ BIERIZA

at fair value through FAESIR 2 ETERKES

profit or loss

- Hong Kong — B 7,359 -

— Outside Hong Kong —BABAIME[E 45,029 =

52,388 -

Key terms of these debt securities are summarised below:
I EEBBHFEZERBARNT
Coupon interest rate 5.250% to 9.547%
SE A= 5.250% %£9.547%
Maturity 2015 or perpetual
FEAR “E-HFHKA
The fair values of the Group’s investments in listed debt securities REER EMEBRES2IRE 2 A FETIRE
have been measured as described in note 34.8 to these financial RIS FE34. 8ATALEFT = -

statements.
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20.

21

112

FEAFI A= -ALFE

INVENTORIES - GROUP 20. FE—&H
2009 2008
—ZEENF —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Medicines and dispensary supplies %% & & & F 54 15,806 15,199
Consumables JEFE 726 746
16,532 15,945

. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 21. ESRURIE-KE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FH&T
Trade receivables, gross B 5 B W IR AR 138,869 136,134
Less: Provision for impairment B B S EYGRIBRERE

of trade receivables (4,200) (6,799)
Trade receivables, net B 5 e RGRIAF 5 134,669 129,335

Trade receivables generally have 30 to 60 days’ credit terms and no
interest is charged to the Group’s business-related customers. The
Group has a credit policy in place, and exposures are monitored
and overdue balances are reviewed by senior management on an
ongoing basis. Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, gross is as follows:

B 5 RWHIE—RBE30E60E ZEEH - A&
B EAEEABETPHBRAE - AEERE

EERE SREREeREER

[ B K A

BHERR - RIBERAH - BZREFIAER

ZERER AT

2009 2008
—RBRE  —TINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current to 30 days BIEAZE30H 95,709 80,765
31 to 60 days 31£260H 18,632 20,347
61 to 90 days 61290H 6,832 7,906
Over 90 days BiE90H 17,696 27,116
138,869 136,134
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of trade
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one year are
not materially different from their carrying amounts because these
balances have short maturity periods on their inception.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired is as

1. EZRWFE-EBE(E)

ARBEERE BN —FAKODZZEFE
WHRBZ R FEREKREEZR K - REZ
I E AR B AR R IR A 85 o

RREEZ UGB REDTAT

follows:
2009 2008
—BETAE T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Neither past due nor impaired I R E B OR (B 98,252 84,190
Less than 1 month past due B R DR — 1 A 15,031 22,058
1 to 3 months past due BHE—Z= =& A 12,851 13,561
Over 3 months past due #60 BfER 38 = {E A 8,535 9,526
134,669 129,335

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a large number of independent customers that have a good track
record of credit with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company believe that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

A 8 780 B SR (B ) B 55 B M SR IR B K 8 00 AR
WA HIH R LSz ZR P AR °

E|

EAMEBERREZEZEKFAETDBRNAE
EARAEERFBREGHLCEBEZHBIES - R
BRERSR  AARERAE  ARFHEHM
FOHARNGEERYAELBEAEY  MZF
RERDBAR AR B E U E - BB AL E
MRERE - AREY B ZFEBRT A TR
ER R EMRTHER ZIRE
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21.

114

TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)  21. EZEWRIE - KB (&)
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables B S RBGIBREREZESNT
is as follows:
2009 2008
—ggnE —TI)F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
At 1 January m—HA—H 6,799 3,017
Amount written off F A
during the year (3,265) -
Impairment losses recognised ERRBEESE (MEE7)
(note 7) 666 3,782
At 31 December Wt+=ZA=+—H 4,200 6,799

The above provision for impairment of trade receivable represents a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of HK$4,200,000
(2008: HK$6,799,000) with a carrying amount of HK$6,236,000
(2008: HK$7,270,000). Such provision was determined based on
evidence of impairment on both individual and collective basis. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over the impaired trade receivables whether determined on an
individually or collective basis.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP

AND COMPANY

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand and

short-term bank deposits.

Key terms of the short-term bank deposits of the Group and the
Company are set out below:

2. BeREFESEE-EBERA

7]

RelERRSBEERRFHRNRITRFER

& MIEHIRITIFR °

AEBRANRBZEBRRITERZ T ZHRRE

FaAT

Group
£

Company
AL

Effective interest rates
- fixed rate
At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008

BERANE-ER

R-BEAF+Z-A=1+—8

K=BB/\E+=A=t-A

0.15% to 0.37%
0.15% %£0.37%
0.01% to 2.85%
0.01%%2.85%

0.15% to 0.29%
0.15%%0.29%
0.15% to 2.2%

0.15%%2.2%

Maturities
At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008

EHA
R-ZEBAFEFT-RA=1—H

RZZEENFE+_A=+—H

1 to 3 months

1 to 3 months

12318 A 1238 A
1 to 3 months 1 to 3 months
1238 A 12318H

Short-term bank deposits of the Group and the Company are
eligible for immediate cancellation without receiving any interest
for the last deposit period.

Cash at banks of the Group and the Company earn interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

REE R AR E 2 52 HIRIT A E SR
— &R 2 A B Z B TR BUS °

AEERARABFERNRIT A HIRESA
RITERM KR ZZE B ERIMA L -
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23. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES, 23. B EHROE - HtEARIE
ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED B REREWERE -KE
- GROUP
2009 2008
—EEhEF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables B S ER IR 28,866 23,700
Other payables, accruals HAERFRIE « B RIBERE KRS
and deposits received 150,124 137,791
178,990 161,491
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables BEEZAH B RENREBZERED T
were as follows: s
2009 2008
—ETAE ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current to 90 days BNHAZ90H 26,389 23,033
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,760 230
Over 181 days H@E181H 717 437
28,866 23,700
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the REEZEESEMNNRIE - EMENKIER
Group's trade payables, other payables and accruals are considered ERtRIERBEHME - WEKREERE HHE
to be a reasonable approximation of their fair values. HAYEEERS
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24. HIRE PURCHASE CONTRACT PAYABLE - 24. ENHEBEHN -KE
GROUP
The Group leased certain office equipment for its medical services REEREHBELHEAEBERSEGHRS
business under a hire purchase arrangement. The term of the hire FTHRAZERE HELZHEABRFT  ERFA
purchase arrangement was five years and had been fully settled BH IS o

during the year.

The total future minimum lease payment under the hire purchase RZTZZENF+_A=+—8  BEABELH
arrangement and its present value at 31 December 2008 were as RRFARBAT KRBT REIRENT ¢
follows:

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
KL
BIEMEARRER Nz B E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T
Amounts payable within one year —&FRENEFE 5 3
Total minimum hire purchase SEMBALENRE
contract payable 5 3
Future finance charges RIRFLE & (2)
Net hire purchase contract payable FHEEA 49~/ IE;F 48 3
Portion classified as current FIVEREN & &2 B 7
liabilities 3)
Non-current portion SERDERER (R =
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25. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP

26.

118

FEAFI A= -ALFE

The movements of deferred tax liabilities in respect of depreciation
allowance in excess of related depreciation are as follows:

25. EERIE - KE

EAERE S & 2 3 & BB SRR B 2 2 8
T

2009 2008

—ZEAF —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBxT FHBT

At 1 January mn—H—H 508 1,133
Credited to profit or loss FANFFABZ (HFE9)

for the year (note 9) (208) (625)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 300 508

At 31 December 2009, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$39,244,000 (2008: HK$49,778,000), subject to the
agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these tax losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and/or
it is not presently considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which such tax losses can be utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RZZBZEAFE+-_A=+—0 AEERES
B 2 B S B8 539,244,000 T — T T\
£ : 49,778,000 7T) (AFB AT B HHER
AERAAUKEEEZSEBRZ AR ZAK
ERFRF - BRZEFHEESBINEADS
—BERZMBAREL @ kKRBT E
B AR B i F AT R IR SErz SRR IS 18+ iR
PR EERELERIBEE ©

AR A A B RO A 2 B B 3 4 Y s (AT TS R
BR-

SHARE CAPITAL 26. IR
2009 2008
—EZAF —EENF
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
ZEREE FET LB EE FHT
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &EAXEI{E0.10/8 7T
2 3,000,000,000 300,000 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHRE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &EAXEI{E0.10/E 7T
2
At 1 January R—A—H 229,875,859 22,987 238,937,348 23,893
Repurchase jiAE| (4,836,452) (483) (9,061,489) (906)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8 225,039,407 22,504 229,875,859 22,987

Quality HealthCare Asia Limited Annual Report 2009



Notes to Financial Statements

T EndiER
B R R MY 5
For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-_TTAF+-A=1—HILEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Company repurchased its own share through the Stock
Exchange as follows:

26. RA(48)

AABEBIFABEERGBEOHIT

Number of Aggregate
Month of ordinary shares of Price per ordinary share consideration
repurchase HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid
HREE0.10E T2 SR ERER 24
B[ A5 ZER BS BIE RE
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
BT BT FET

Year ended BEZE-ZZThE

31 December 2009 +=A=+-—H
IFFEE

February 2009 —EZhEZR 818,000 1.95 1.90 1,598
April 2009 —EZhFEINA 1,124,452 2.20 2.20 2,485
May 2009 —EZhFEHRA 40,000 2.62 2.60 105
June 2009 —EZhEKRA 482,000 2.70 2.60 1,276
July 2009 —EZhFELA 480,000 3.07 2.70 1,398
September 2009 —EENFHA 256,000 4.05 3.89 1,017
October 2009 —EZhETA 1,344,000 4.10 3.90 5,485
November 2009 —EZhET—A 292,000 4.10 4.00 1,186
4,836,452 14,550

Year ended BE-_ZEZTN\&F

31 December 2008 +=—A=+—H
LFE

September 2008 —ZEZENFNA 868,000 2.50 2.41 2,174
October 2008 —ZEZNFT+H 8,177,489 2.28 2.05 18,627
December 2008 —ZEZN\EFE+A 16,000 1.90 1.75 30
9,061,489 20,831

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the years ended
31 December 2008 and 2009 and the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by an amount equivalent to the nominal
value of these shares. The premium of the repurchased shares has
been charged to the share premium account.

The repurchases were made for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole with a view to enhance the earnings
per share of the Company.

Subsequent to 31 December 2009, there was no repurchase of the
Company’s ordinary shares.

FERZROHERBE_ZTZNFR_ZZTN
FT_A=T—HILFEATH MARFZ
EETRATRBE R L ER N 2 & FRHEER
Ao PREBEIAR ) 2 5 (B B B (e B AR HIRR o

BRI ARE RERR 2 BB M
H o BARS AR R Z BREAF

R-ZBZNFT_A=1+—B& ARALE
BE{ERE R -
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120

FEAFI A= -ALFE

SHARE OPTION PLAN

The Company operates a share incentive plan (the “Share Incentive
Plan”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

Pursuant to the Share Incentive Plan, the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, invite any employees, executive
or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors), officers, advisers, consultants or such other persons
from time to time to be an eligible person to whom share options
will be granted as an incentive to attract and retain them for their
contributions to the business development of the Group. The Share
Incentive Plan was approved and adopted by the Company on 7
June 2002 (the “Adoption Date”) and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The total number of ordinary shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Incentive Plan (excluding options lapsed)
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the Adoption Date, without a prior approval from
the Company’s ordinary shareholders. The maximum entitlement
of each eligible participant under the Share Incentive Plan of the
Group in any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at the
date of grant, unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 14
business days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, but
in any event such period may not go beyond 10 year from the
Adoption Date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer of the share option; and (iii) the closing price of the
Company’s ordinary share on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of the share option (which must be a business day). Further
details of the Share Incentive Plan are also set out in a circular of
the Company dated 22 May 2002.
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27. SHARE OPTION PLAN (continued)

28.

There were no share options granted under the Share Incentive Plan
during the year (2008: Nil). As at 31 December 2009, the Company
had no outstanding share options under the Share Incentive Plan
(2008: Nil).

RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movement

27. BB REST

28.

8 (&)

FAAEREID R EIRLBERE(ZET
NE ) - R_FTAF+_A=+—H &
N BRI A0 22 B AT B 2 M 1) R AT (R 2 BB A
(ZTFENF &) -

- EER AT

(a) &H

FARBEFENASERFREIEES 2

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the HHE2INGEaEmZEHRNA -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Company (b) AF
Share Retained
Premium profits Total
IR 518 R 882 Fl st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FET
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZZEENF—A—RB2& 103,034 432,685 535,719
Profit and total comprehensive  4F A | & & U A 4258
income for the year - 2,583 2,583
Proposed final 2008 dividend Bk —ZTT )\ FRARE - (25,769) (25,769)
Repurchase of shares AR ) (19,925) = (19,925)
Balance at 31 December 2008 R-_ZEZNF+_A=+—8E
and 1 January 2009 —EENEF-A-AZER 83,109 409,499 492,608
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A& FI| & 2 UL A 4858
income for the year - 763 763
Adjustment for final 2008 R N\EREKRE
dividend (note 11(a)) e 2 AE(KIEE11(a) - 131 131
Repurchase of shares RS (14,067) = (14,067)
Balance at 31 December 2009 ZEENFTZA=+—HZ&H 69,042 410,393 479,435
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BUSINESS COMBINATION

There was no acquisition during the year ended 31 December
2009.

On 8 October 2008, TCM Products Limited (the “Purchaser”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”) with certain
third parties (collectively the “Vendors”) for the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the entire issued share capital of GHC Holdings
Limited (“GHC"). GHC together with its subsidiaries (collectively the
“GHC Group”) are primarily engaged in the operation of certain
medical centers and an aesthetic specialist centre in Hong Kong.
Further details of the Acquisition are set out in a circular of the
Company dated 30 October 2008.

The Acquisition was completed on 23 October 2008 (“Completion”).
The purchase consideration for the Acquisition was in the form of
cash and was initially agreed to be HK$29,600,000 (the “Agreed
Consideration”), of which HK$27,600,000 was paid to the Vendors
(the “Cash Consideration Paid”) and a sum of HK$2,000,000
was deducted from the Agreed Consideration and retained by
the Purchaser at Completion (the “Retained Amount”) as security
for the due performance of the obligations of certain original
shareholders of GHC (collectively the “Warrantors”) under the SP
Agreement, whereby the Warrantors would jointly and severally
undertake to procure GHC to fulfil certain net working capital
requirement of the GHC Group as at Completion (the “Net
Working Capital Requirement”, as defined in the SP Agreement),
and as security for certain warranties given by the Warrantors (the
“Warrantors’ Warranties”) and certain undertakings of the Vendors
(the "Vendors’ Undertakings”) as set out in the SP Agreement.

Pursuant to the SP Agreement, if the Net Working Capital
Requirement could not be met and thereby resulting in a shortfall
(the “Shortfall”, as defined in the SP Agreement) and if the Retained
Amount is insufficient to set-off against the Shortfall, the Shortfall
would be paid by the Warrantors, jointly and severally, to the
Purchaser or as the Purchaser may direct.
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Subsequent to the Completion but prior to the date of approval of
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2008, the purchaser and the Warrantors have agreed that, inter
alia the Shortfall, would be settled by an amount of approximately
HK$9,202,000, whereby, a sum of approximately HK$1,802,000
would be deducted from the Retained Amount and a sum of
HK$7,400,000 would be paid by the Warrantors to the Purchaser’s
designated payee in cash (the “Amount Recoverable”). The remaining
Retained Amount in the sum of approximately HK$198,000 (the
“Remaining Retained Amount”) would remain with the Purchaser
for settlement of any claims against the Warrantors under the
Warrantors’ Warranties and the Vendors’ Undertakings. Besides,
the Warrantors paid the entire amount of the Amount Recoverable
as full and final settlement of the Shortfall.

Moreover, pursuant to the SP Agreement, the Purchaser would
undertake to pay the Vendors an additional amount (the “Additional
Amount”) if CASE Specialist Limited (“CASE"), a subsidiary of GHC,
makes a net profit after tax of more than HK$1,000,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2009. The Additional Amount was to be
determined with reference to the after tax profit of CASE for the
year ended 31 March 2009 in accordance with the SP Agreement.
After evaluating the after tax profit of CASE for the year ended
31 March 2009, no Additional Amount was required to be made
by the Group for the Acquisition.

29. ESH(E)

RERBREE-_ZTTN\F+_A=+—HI
FEZKEZM BRI ED B BEH8E
REAERE  (HHBEHE)BEINEBOA
9,202,000/8 T2 =58 - E Ut iR 8B SRIEHIBR
#91,802,000/7C - MIRBAFUNBEERE R
5 2 WA 147,400,000 7t ([ 7] 45 [B1 5%
H]) o RBRBJARBEREFEE BT 2R
B2 SR IE#9198,0007 7o ([ 82 TR B KIE 1) #
BAREB  UXHRRBARLZEMRE -
AN RBAEXMNAIMEBIRIEZ 280 (ER
ERZ Y REIEER -

o RBEEEW - BB - fCASE
Specialist Limited ([CASE] * =@z B2 7))
REE-_EThF=F=T—BILFEHEHR
i1 41 F)7811,000,00078 7T + A E 75 S A5 FT A0
R (TN ER D) o BE AN S ARIR B & 1ok
BHE-_TTNE=A=1+—HILFECASEZ
BREERANMETE c RETECASEBZ TN
FZRA=T—HILFEZREEENE K&
B &AW EEIEEL MR -
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29. DEESHH(E)

REBEHRREEATINEERAB LAY

29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the GHC

Group as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying

amounts immediately before the acquisition were as follow:

B URERKE 2 ERREEDT

Fair value
recognised Previous
on acquisition carrying amount
RBEBRERZATLE S Al ARE B
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RRAE 2,710 2,710
Other intangible assets Hitm &= 9,880 =
Deposits for purchases of items of FEAYIZE « BFE RZHEIEE 2&E
property, plant and equipment 255 255
Inventories A 1,999 1,999
Trade receivables 2 S EYGRIA 2,704 2,704
Prepayments, deposits and TERRUE © e RH MR KEIE
other receivables 3,294 3,294
Cash and cash equivalents RERERRESEE 895 895
Trade payables, other payable B SFERIE « H b FETRIE R
and accruals JEETFRIA (4,578) (4,578)
Deferred revenue EIEUT A (8,362) (8,362)
Hire purchase contract payable JESFRIE & 4V (1,892) (1,892)
Tax payable e THIA (1,056) (1,056)
5,849 (4,031)
Goodwill on acquisition WREEE e 16,056
Total cost of the Acquisition Wk =18 2 4K 2N 21,905
The total cost of the Acquisition ~WEEBEAKAN X (T :
was satisfied by:
HK$'000
FET
Cash Consideration Paid BERBESNRE 27,600
Direct cost paid relating to BB EIEAEEEK A
the Acquisition 1,507
Remaining Retained Amount B8 NRE TRIE 198
Less: Amount Recoverable B, 0 ATUR B FRTE (7,400)
21,905
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Amount Recoverable and Remaining Retained Amount were
included in “Prepayments, deposits and other receivables” and
“Trade payables, other payables, accruals and deposits received”,
respectively, on the face of the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2008.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of the GHC Group is as follows:

29. EEEH ()

ARERIBRG TRERBDHINAR-ZFFT
NEFTZA=+—BHREMBHEMRAR 2[R
B ReREMRKIEIRNE S EMNFR
Hip B 50R - Bt AR WIRE ] -

SppESREBR 2R NERASEERDF
AT

HK$’'000
FET
Cash Consideration Paid BfRERE (27,600)
Direct costs paid relating B SRR EE KA
to the Acquisition (1,507)
Cash and cash equivalents FEReRERRCEE
acquired 895
Net outflow of cash and cash WSR2 R e RER
equivalents in respect of ReBEEMLFHE
the Acquisition (28,212)
Since its acquisition, the GHC Group contributed approximately BRENR  SREEREEZE_ZZTN\F+

HK$10,237,000 to the Group's revenue and reduced its consolidated
net profit by approximately HK$718,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue and the consolidated net profit of the Group for
the year would have been HK$1,029,134,000 (as restated) and
HK$61,641,000, respectively.

A=t BLEFEAREBRZRAERLY
10,237,000 T2 EBR + I Bl R E 4R & A8 F 4
718,000/ 7T °

ERFVIEETAN  AAKRBEFAZKRAR

FEE GRS BIA1,029,134,0005 7T (R EF )i
TTX61,641,0008 T ©
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CORPORATE
GUARANTEES - GROUP

126

(a)

At the reporting date, certain corporate guarantees were
given by the Company to external third parties which were
not provided for in the financial statements as follows:

(i) Corporate guarantees were given by the Company
to certain third parties in connection with tenancy
agreements entered into by its subsidiaries with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$37,106,000 at
31 December 2009 (2008: HK$31,589,000).

(i) Corporate guarantees were given by the Company
to certain banks in connection with banking facilities
granted to its subsidiaries with an aggregate amount
of HK$20,000,000 at 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$60,000,000).

As at 31 December 2009, the banking facilities granted to
the subsidiaries subject to the corporate guarantees given
to the banks by the Company were utilised to the extent
of approximately HK$3,950,000 (2008: HK$3,950,000)
for the issuance of bank guarantees and performance
bonds by a bank.

The Company did not recognise the financial guarantee
contracts as at 31 December 2008 and 2009 as the directors
of the Company considered that it was not probable that
the payment of rental under respective tenancy agreements
and the banking facilities by the relevant subsidiaries would
be in default.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group was engaged in
certain litigation and claims which have not been disclosed in
detail, as the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
material economic benefits is considered remote.
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(a)

R=

R\ER - ARBRETFINRE=TTMR
R BHRRAERBREZE T 2RERD

T

(i)

(ii)

EBE2E

— ==

ZIN/N

‘Eé:ggjLiJr:H =+t—H' &

ANRIFEM B AR 2 HE
s FE=FiREQRER
£ 584 437,106,000/ L( —ZZ N\
4 : 31,589,000/ 7T) °

/\/u

\ZEENE+_A=+—H &
A RIBLEHT B A R E RS T iR1TRR
BmmRITIRER TW% Hiad
A /320,000,000 T( Z T ZT N\ F ¢
60,000,000/ 7T ) °

RZZEENF+ZA=+—H &
AN A R A R AT R A B & R T %
THEARIZRITRER 8 A
#)3,950,000% m( = T T )\ & :
3,950,000 7T ) 1E /= tH BLERTTHE (R £
RiRtEORES ©

NER-EEAET=A=+—8

A BERVBEREYN  RELAAF

EERA FRAMBARTAERERNRE

BREE T =

(b)

ZHERRITRERA

%:33%%&_22)\¢+_H =t—

E/\\\BM%E%EK BEREENZE

CAREETERETHRARAR - 1R
%2 BRI

HZBERE - R BIEFARE



Notes to Financial Statements

755 3l 2% B 7
I 15 = M T
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-PEAF+_A=+—AILER

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS -
GROUP

As lessee
At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments
payable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are

31.

MERNEE - %6

EREBEA
RB|ER  AEBERB TR EERORE
2 RRRER S RAAENT

as follows:

2009 2008
—EENF —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 88,058 80,900

In the second to fifth years, F_EERF(RREEEMRTF)
inclusive 106,802 59,735
After five years R 9,007 =
203,867 140,635

The Group leases a number of its medical centres, office premises,
elderly care homes and office equipment under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of one to six years, with options
to renew the leases or renegotiate the terms at the respective
expiry dates or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group and
respective landlords/lessors. None of the leases include contingent
rentals.

As lessor

The Group subleases certain of its premises under operating lease
commitments, with non-cancellable leases negotiated for a term
of three years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

AEERBEZEORHEAREE TEES
O WREYE - EERERBRIERE - B
RURENF—FZ2/RF  AEBEETHOK
REBERB R ASEERRET /HEA
HKRWE 2 BREHREGR - BEHROBE
AT -

EREBAA
AEBERBE AT HEEE D 2 REBRLAEDH
HETYR KHhmc=HENR=F -1
MIER—RITBRBAPMNRES - BEHLD
BREIAES -
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - 31. REMN AR -EB(E)
GROUP (continued)
As lessor (continued) EHHBEANE)
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease RZTZZNF+_A=+—8  KAEBERET
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: A 2 A TR AV FE UL 2 R AR S (K FH & A BE 40
T~
2009 2008
ZEBENF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Within one year —&R 116 94
In the second to fifth years, FEFhFE(BEEERSE)
inclusive 219 -
335 94
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS - GROUP 3. EXEE-&H
2009 2008
—EENEF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Acquisitions of property, plant and BEE¥1% - B K&l
equipment:
Contracted but not provided for & 5T 41E 15 R B4 1,402 966
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the following transactions were carried
out by the Group with related parties during the year.

(a) Transactions with AGL and AGL's subsidiaries

The Group had certain transactions with AGL and AGL's
subsidiaries, which are fellow subsidiaries of the Group, based
on mutually agreed terms as set out in the relevant agreements
during the year:

(i) The Group paid insurance premiums of approximately
HK$5,248,000 (2008: HK$4,490,000) to Sun Hung
Kai Insurance Consultants Limited in accordance with
the relevant insurance brokerage services agreement
for a term of 12 months, commencing from 1 January
2009.

(i)  The Group paid corporate secretarial service fees of
approximately HK$1,335,000 (2008: HK$1,253,000) to
Wineur Secretaries Limited (“Wineur”) in accordance
with the relevant corporate secretarial service agreement
for a term of 12 months, commencing from 1 January
2009.

(iii) The Group reimbursed AGL for the costs incurred in
respect of management, consultancy, strategic and
business advice services provided by senior management
and selective staff of AGL to the Group in accordance
with the relevant sharing of the management services
agreement of HK$1,584,000 (2008: HK$1,440,000).

(iv) The Group incurred internal audit and compliance
consultancy service fee of approximately HK$300,000
to AGL during the year (2008: Nil).

(v)  The Group received medical services fees from Sun Hung
Kai & Co. Limited of approximately HK$799,000 (2008:
HK$923,000).

(b) Transactions with a jointly controlled entity
No service fee for the provision of facilities and services
charged by a jointly controlled entity was paid by the Group
(2008: HK$781,000) for the Group’'s medical practices. The
fee for the year ended 31 December 2008 was charged based
on terms mutually agreed between both parties.

3B.AHAEALZRS

BB SRR E M AR AT R 2 R 5 M AR
Oh - REBEAREALTNFRETTIATR
5 e

() EBEKERBESEEZIMELRETZ
x5
AEFRBAEEMGEEEE ZHMBAT
(BAEEZRRAMBAR)RFAIZEH
Wb a2 T B E IRFETT R TR S ¢

()  ANEBERZEBEORBRELE RS B
mEFEERBER AR QMR
£ 495,248,000 (=TT )\ F
4,490,000%7T) ' A= ZENF— A
—HAEAHT=@EA -

(i AEEBIBEBEEH QR ERS HE
MERMEERAE(ERE DM
AIRMERBE491,335,000/8 T( =
TR ¢ 1,253,00087T)  H-EE
hEFE—A— Bzt AH+=MA -

(i) BEARES BERGHE - ASE
HEEEEENSREEERBMAS
EfEAEMASERHERE BB
B RBUREBEZRBABZZ
% [H1,584,0008 ( Z T T )\ F -
1,440,000/ 7T ) °

(iv) AEBMRERMREASEB S FABE
% 05 R ES 7% B B 49300,0007% 7T
(Z2ZT)NGF : ]/) -

(v) ANEBERFIEEBRADFUREER
R E #9799,000/8 T ( ZEE )\ 4F :
923,000587T) °

(b) EE—REHEEHCEETZIRS
ANEE N A — R AR R R M
e KBRS T AN B 2 BB S T S AN T
ARBEE( =TT /)\F : 781,000 ) °
BE—ZTN\E+-_A=+—HIFEZ
B A TIRE T 3 2 AT o
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33.

34.

130

FEAFI A= -ALFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

Included in the Group’s accruals are outstanding balances with
AGL of HK$1,488,000 (2008: HK$360,000) and Wineur of
HK$665,000 (2008: HK$311,000). Accruals to these related
parties are non-interest bearing and unsecured. Accruals are

usually settled by cash.

(d) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel of the Group are members of
the board of directors. Details of key management personnel
remuneration are set out in note 13 to these financial

statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial
instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in its investing
activities. The financial risks include market risk (including currency
risk and interest risk), credit risk, liquidity risk, other price risk and
Fixed-fee Contracts risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the
Group's short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure
to financial markets. Long term financial investments are managed
to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading
of financial instruments for speculative purposes. The Group’s
headquarters works under the policies approved by the board of
directors. It identifies ways to access financial markets and monitors
the Group’s financial risk exposures.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. BiEREER AFEFTE(E)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 341 eRIEEREBESE
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial ISR R PT 25 2 BREE T EIA T & 48
position relate to the following categories of financial assets CREERERIAERA :

and financial liabilities:

Financial assets TRIEE
Group Company
&8 YNl
2009 2008 2009 2008
- - S A S A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TET

At fair value through profit or loss ZEBEIFE

AFEFIER
Financial assets at fair value through  ZEBEZZATF
profit or loss B REE 52,388 - - -
Loans and receivables BEXRRERRE
Trade receivables Z 5 WA 134,669 129,335 = =
Financial assets included in STAFENFE - 7E
prepayments, deposits and N Ep FE YRR
other receivables ZERERE 35,567 36,615 = =
Due from subsidiaries, JRE W B B A )
net of impairment FIE - HBRRE - - 707,322 754,152
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERREEE 226,939 230,031 123,525 111,576
397,175 395,981 830,847 865,728
449,563 395,981 830,847 865,728
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

132

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

4. K EREER A FENE(E)

341 SREEREBEIE(E)

Financial liabilities TRAE
Group Company
58 YN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEAE —ZZN\F CZEBBRE —TIT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT TERT TR
At amortised cost R R A
Due to a jointly controlled entity JE —FE £ R 199 48 - -
Pl (IR
Trade payables B I ENFIA 28,866 23,700 - -
Financial liabilities included in other ST A A FETFRIE
payable, accruals and FEEt A KB
deposits received EesemAR 99,860 69,486 4,190 3,188
Due to subsidiaries AN NG - - 323,003 319,473
Hire purchase contract payable e S - 3 - -
128,925 93,237 327,193 322,661

34.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to
the risks of foreign currency is minimal, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are mainly
denominated in US$, as the Group’s revenue is derived from
customers based in Hong Kong and it primarily purchases
from suppliers based in Hong Kong.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Since HK$ are pegged to US$, there is no significant exposure
expected on US$ transactions and balances whilst the currency
peg remains in place.

The Company does not have any exposures to foreign
currencies at 31 December 2009 (2008: no exposure).
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the
Company’s exposures to interest rate risk arise from their
bank balances which bore interest at floating interest rates.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

Details the interest rate profile of the Group’s and the
Company’s short-term bank deposits are set out in note 22.

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general increase
of 100 (2008: 100) basis points in interest rates, with all other
variable held constant, would increase the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately HK$1,262,000
(2008: HK$975,000).

A decrease of 100 (2008: 100) basis points in interest rate
would have had equal but opposite effect to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the reporting
date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments at the reporting date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

34.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of
its operations and from its investing activities.

4. I EREER A FENE(E)

34.3 FIEE

MERFEERITAZ AFEHIRS R
ERTSNREB MRS 2 ER - NEE
RARRBREZZBM KRB ZRITHEK
i RS2 N R [ B o A R [ 3 AR A (AR AT
AT AA K AR HEPIAS 2 M =@ o
A BEEEEREMNERR - XHRHBE
BE eI AAS 2 ERM KRR

REB KRR T 2 EHRITERZ FRE
BEHRMIFE22 -

RZZEZNFE+T_A=+—H MF=x
ZEEMI00E( == N\ 4F : 100fF) &
B MATAEMEEHEETE - AlEEA
& E 2 R 12 N B 4R B Vg N A 45 0 4V
1,262,000/ 7o( = ZF = J\ F : 975,000/
JT) °

BT A H b E SRR A E - IR =R D
10018 ( =ZFZ /\4F : 100f) EE 5% £
M e RELERERARZITE -

DA B 5 47 T BRI TR B I83R
BHLEARBED 2 LRIAFIEER
TEE - 1005 2 58 A5 @
HEREE TEEREREA BNz A8
THED - BT /\E2 REHFRA—
BT o

FERRE

FERBRESRTAZRXZE FRERE
ERIAZEGRETECTLRBAEER
XMBERR AR - NREEAZ ZEEE
REBRENEAEXRKBREATPIE
EERKERERD -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

134

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.4 Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets, primarily attributable to
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits paid and
cash and cash equivalents recognised at the reporting date
summarised below:

34. BEBERR AFEFEE)

34.4 EERMK (%)
REBFAZZZREERBRERRE R
BEZEEAE  FERAUTHIIRHRE
HHERZE S RIKGRIE « HAbEUFRIA -
EffRERESRERBSEE -

2009 2008

—ETAE T NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Trade receivables B 5 WA 134,669 129,335
Other receivables and HAb WK R E MR E®

deposits paid 35,567 36,615

Cash and cash equivalents R&RERRESEE 226,939 230,031

Overall net exposure EERRFE 397,175 395,981

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers
and other counterparties, identifies either individually or by
group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk
controls.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancements.

In respect of trade and other receivables and deposits paid,
the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure
to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The credit risk for liquid funds
is considered minimal, since the counterparties are reputable
banks with high quality of external credit ratings.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.5 Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates). The Group is exposed to change
in market prices in respect of its investments in listed debt
securities classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general increase
of 10% of the price of the listed debt securities, with all other
variables held constant, would increase the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately HK$4,374,000.

A decrease of 10% in the price of the listed debt securities
would have had equal but opposite effect to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

There were no listed debt securities as at 31 December
2008.

34.6 Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group does not
have any significant liquidity risk exposure.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term financial liabilities.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.6 Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

34. YBEBERR AFEFEE)

34.6 iBESRAR(E)

AEBRIE S OARTRENFTAENRRE
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the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

FemBEZRHAZRIT -

On demand/ 3 to
no fixed terms Less than less than
of repayment 3 months 12 months Total
REXEER
HBETERY SR=BA =Z+=f@A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TERT TER TERT
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEBAF
+=A=t+-H
Due to a jointly controlled entity JE —FE £ [F 199 - - 199
2| {> TR
Trade payables B S ERN IR 9,939 18,927 - 28,866
Financial liabilities included in other AEAE MR -
payables, accruals and FERTRIE R E M
deposits received EeseRAR 30,931 64,571 4,358 99,860
41,069 83,498 4,358 128,925
At 31 December 2008 R=-BENF
+=ZHA=+—H
Due to a jointly controlled entity E—R £ 48 - - 48
2| FIA
Trade payables B e IR 9,127 14,573 = 23,700
Financial liabilities included in other T AE M REERIE
payables, accruals and FEstRIE KRB
deposits received RezemBE 20,663 45,609 3,214 69,486
Hire purchase contract payable [ERTREBEH - 2 3 5
29,838 60,184 3,217 93,239
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. BiiEMBEER AFEE(E)

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.6 Liquidity risk (continued) 346 RBESRAMR(E)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
was as follows:

ARRRBE A HORT RN R EORRE
He@AE 2 A ERmT

On demand/ 3 to
no fixed terms Less than less than
of repayment 3 months 12 months Total
REREE
B E TR LR=@EA =Z+={@A wat
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTERT TET
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBEAE
+=A=1+—H
Due to subsidiaries T B A BB 323,003 = — 323,003
Other payables H it e {5 508 - 2,332 1,858 4,190
323,003 2,332 1,858 327,193
At 31 December 2008 R=B2N\F
+=A=t+-8H
Due to subsidiaries )= NGIE 319,473 - = 319,473
Other payables H o eI 58 - 471 2,717 3,188
319,473 471 2,717 322,661
34.7 Fixed-fee Contracts risk 34.7 EEREES KN RS

The Group enters into certain Fixed-fee Contracts, in which
the Group uses its own medical centres/clinics, staff and other
resources to provide medical/dental services covered by the
contracts. The level of services to be rendered under the Fixed-
fee Contracts is uncertain and depends on uncertain future
events. The Group has to consider whether the cost of meeting
its contractual obligations to provide the services under the
Fixed-fee Contracts may exceed the revenue it will receive and
the probability of such risk (the “Risk”) when assessing the
pricing and provisioning for such contracts.

AEEFYEEREARYN  REZEA
K REBFBEEBROBRS L2
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
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VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.7 Fixed-fee Contracts risk (continued)

The frequency and severity of the Risk are affected by many
factors, including, inter alia, the health status and awareness
of the persons covered by the Fixed-fee Contracts and that
of the general public in Hong Kong, the outbreak/potential
outbreak of any epidemic, climatic changes, the duration of
those contracts (which in general are of short duration), as
well as a diversity of social, industrial and economic factors.
The risk associated with such factors (including any undue
concentration thereof and the probability of the occurrence
of certain events affected by them) on the actual recovery
rate for individual contracts is the key source of uncertainty
that needs to be estimated.

The Group manages the Risk through periodic review of the
estimated and actual recovery rates of individual contracts
and includes such assessment in establishing its pricing and
contract continuance policies.

As the related assets and liabilities of the Fixed-fee Contracts
are non-interest-bearing and as the provision of services on
credit are in general only made to customers with good
credit history or of low risk profile, the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk and credit risk in respect of such contracts
is considered to be minimal.

As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables and deferred revenue
of the Group attributable to its Fixed-fee Contracts amounted
to approximately HK$5,824,000 (2008: HK$8,428,000) and
HK$4,449,000 (2008: HK$4,684,000) respectively.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

34.8 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of

financial position

The Group adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7 Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments effective from 1 January
2009. These amendments introduce a three-level hierarchy for
fair value measurement disclosures and additional disclosures
about the relative reliability of fair value measurements. There
was no financial assets carried at fair value at 31 December
2008 and accordingly, no comparatives for the hierarchy for
fair value measurement disclosures have been presented.

The hierarchy groups financial assets into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring
the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets;

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

—  Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into the Level 2 fair value hierarchy. Fair values have been
determined by reference to their bid prices at the reporting
date provided by the brokers, which were derived based
on vendors quotes and/or published rates from Bloomberg/
Reuters/Traders, and have been translated using the spot
foreign currency rates at the end of the reporting period
where appropriate.
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TEAFT A= -ALFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions to
ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, repurchase its shares or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors the level of its capital on an ongoing basis.
Capital of the Group comprises all components of owners’ equity.
Capital of the Group at 31 December 2009 was HK$339,887,000
(2008: HK$304,150,000).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No significant changes were made in the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Pursuant to the announcement dated 24 March 2010, the board
of directors of the Company has decided to return HK$99 million
of the surplus funds to shareholders via the following two-step
process in lieu of proposing a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2009.

Firstly, the Company will undertake a share buy back at HK$4.1 per
share to utilise HK$99 million. This will enable any shareholders who
wish to dispose shares an opportunity to do so at a price which
the Board considers appropriate and reasonable for the Company
and all its shareholders.

Secondly, the board of directors has stated its intention to declare

a special dividend to remaining shareholders of any balance of the
HK$99 million not utilised for the share buy back.
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